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GROUP PROFILE

Sketch UCL’s operational sphere

UCL s a financial services group operating in Bangladesh, consisting of Union Capital Limited, UniCap Securities
Limited and UniCap Investments Limited. The subsidiaries of UCL are providing capital market services while
UCL is a non-banking financial institution that provides comprehensive financial services. UCL's ordinary shares
are traded on both the bourses of Bangladesh since 2007.

UCL and its subsidiaries constitute one of the largest financial services groups, which began its activities more than 22 years
ago. UCL's predecessor, Peregrine Capital Limited was established in 1988 based in Hong Kong. UCL is involved in a variety
of financial and nonbanking activities in Bangladesh. UCL operates through its 6 offices located in Dhaka, Chattogram,
Sylhet, Gazipur and Bogura along with its subsidiaries namely UniCap Securities Ltd. and UniCap Investments Ltd. UCL's
policy is to provide its customers with comprehensive financial solutions, high-level professional services, and a wide
variety of products adapted to each customer’s need. To implement its strategy, UCL operates through different business
lines, with each business line providing financial services to a particular customer segment: Corporate Financial Services
including leasing and term finance to SMEs and large enterprises of different sectors, Capital Market Services include issue
management, share frading and portfolio management through its subsidiaries and Retail Customer Services include
deposit schemes and personal lending. UCL is a publicly fraded company listed on both the Dhaka and Chittagong Stock
Exchange. UCL is a diversified company that creates value and delivers shareholder returns from core operating business.
Our focus, core competency and competitive advantage is driven by our team’s depth of knowledge, experience and
hands-on expertise.

THE GROUP SERVICES EXPERIENCES

e Different deposit schemes e Be an extraordinary place to work

e Corporate and SME finance * Operate with excellence

e Retail finance e Take only risks that we understand and can manage
¢ Investors portfolio management e Enhance our brand image

e |PO and rights issue management * Increase shareholders’ value

e Corporate advisory services

* Margin loan for investment in securities BUSINESS LOCATION

» Share frading for retail and corporate investors * Registered office in Dhaka

* Major operating centres in Dhaka
BUSINESS CLUSTERS e Branch network in Dhaka, Chattogram, Sylhet,
* Union Capital Limited (NBFI) Gazipur and Bogura.
* UniCap Securities Limited (a Member of DSE and CSE)
e UniCap Investments Limited (a full fledged Merchant Bank)

BUSINESS FOCUS

* Local Market

* Access to major areas of financial & investment services
e Building strong investment portfolio

e Deliver legendary customer

UCL’s policy is to provide its customers with comprehensive financial solutions, high-level professional services, and a wide variety of
products adapted to each customer’s needs.
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To become a leading and sustainable financial institution providing
ﬁ “ infegrated financial services that reflects its principles and values by
VISION \ y aligning with our mission giving special focus on enhancing values for all
stakeholders through excellence in performance and good governance.
o
4 )
o To be the best run, customer-focused and integrated financial institution
MISSION with a unique and inclusive employee culture.
o J
4 )
Based on our vision, we have chosen to give priority fo our overall
STRATEGY strategic objgcflves that create the foundation for strong growth and
focus on continuous value enhancement.
o J
4 )
We are committed fo returning superior value to our Stakeholders
COMMITMENT Through leadership in innovation, an absolute focus on customers and
operational excellence.
o J
We follow our guiding principles to: Our leaders expect to:
¢ Deliver legendary customer experience; * Make a positive impact;

Be an exfraordinary place of work;

Operate with excellence;
Understand our business;
Take only the risks we understand and canmanage; e Live transparency;

Enhance our brand image;

Increase shareholders’ value

e Build for the future;
¢ Inspire the ‘will to win';
* Work effectively in teams;

e Show excellent judgement;
e Demonstrate unwavering integrity

We have a clear vision and deliverable strategy underpinned by our values which provide the opportunity to generate excellent return.
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SHARE HOLDERS EMPLOYEES ENVIRONMENT

Sl
QUG

wealth by achieving superior working environment for our benefitting the community where
performance employees we do business

CUSTOMERS COMMUNITY

I Maximizing shareholders’ I Providing a safe and supportive I Protecting our environment and

initiatives in health, education, arts and
socio-economic development

beneficial relationships by working
closely with our customers

Developing strong and mutual I I Be good citizen supporting community
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We are committed to return superior value to our stakeholders. We will achieve this through
leadership in innovation, an absolute focus on customers and operational excellence, while
costs need to be af least in line with our competitors.

CUSTOMERS

Provide the most preferred
products and services to
customers by offering values
that exceed customers
expectation. We believe our
customers’ success
determines our future

ENVIRONMENT

Be an environmentally-
responsible company working
together with all stakeholders to
reduce environmental impact by
embedding the environment into
our business and involving our
employees, customers and the
community

SHAREHOLDERS

Increase corporate values
and generate shareholders
benefits through constant
growth, profit generation
and employee commitment
to excellence

P

EMPLOYEES

Strive to have high-
performing corporate
structure and ensure the
employees to work with
winning spirit and
excitement having vision
and pride in their mind

COMMUNITY

Contribute to the community
development maintaining high
ethical standards, obey all laws,
and respect customs

Union Capital Limited | 07



GROWTH

Grow revenue faster than the market. Build on good
performance in improving cash flow. Execute well and
with predictability. The goal is fo have an average
annual investment growth rate in line with industry
growth.

PROFITABILITY

The goal is to have an operating margin (EBIT) of 15
percent measured over a business cycle. The profitability
goal was established based on historical margins and
the company’s growth ambitions.

INVESTMENTS

The benchmark value states that as a provider of financial
services, UCL should make significant investments in
operating assets and human resource that will generate
value by improving the operating performance and
provide the best return.

CAPITAL UTILIZATION

The goal is to have a return on capital employed of at
least 10 percent. This level was set taking intfo account
the relatively low level of capital fied up in non-operating
assets.

...Very good is not good enough, excellence is our goal.

08 | Union Capital Limited

DEBT/EQUITY RATIO

In the long term, the debt/equity ratio, meaning the fund
UCL borrows in relation to the carrying amount of
shareholders’ equity, is fo be less than eight percent.
Although the ratio may exceed this level in connection
with aggressive investment activities, this should be
viewed as merely temporary, since deposits, surplus of
operating cash flow and earnings are expected to offset
this effect.

SUSTAINABILITY GOALS

In addition to its financial goals, UCL has a number of
non-financial goals, including a reduction in paper
consumption, increased energy efficiency, and a
reduction in greenhouse gas emissions. We want to
make a positive impact through partnership, initiatives
and supporting the charitable efforts in our community.

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash flow from operating activities is amounting to 15
percent of operational revenue. This value is lower than
the goal for the operating margin, since organic growth
normally requires an increase in borrowings. In addition,
taxes are paid in an amount corresponding to 37.50
percent of earnings before tax.



INTEGRITY

We act with integrity. We act consistently based on a set
of values, ethical standards and principles. We conduct
all our activities with fairness, honesty and integrity.

TRUST

We work diligently to build a deeper level of trust with
our clients and fund providers through appropriate
investment ideas and value added services.

TEAMWORK

We create a caring, engaged and enabled work
environment that recognizes both individual and team
confributions in pursuit of high performance. We believe
that a good team in an entrepreneurial environment
results in achieving UCL's vision.

TRANSPARENCY

We are focused on the highest level of transparency
providing fimely and accurate information about
company's performance and financial results fo meet
the stakeholders’ expectation.

’
’

‘ Openness
'\ A
S
-

management in delivering

results fo our shareholders,
client and the community we
operate in. Pursuing and living

RESILIENCE

We welcome a challenge; we show sirength of character,
remain positive, even when things are fough; we see
difficulty as an opportunity to demonstrate our ability.

EXCELLENCE

We aspire to achieve excellence in all that we do. We
deliver what we promise and add value beyond
expectations. We pursue continued growth and strive to
achieve the highest levels of performance in all endeavors.

OPENNESS

We are open, honest and fair in what we say and do
and accountable to all including the community for our
actions and inactions.
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...Seven
Core value drives UCL
employees and

up to these values is a
responsibility we take
great pride in.

...our values and standards are the basis of our success. They always have been. They always will be. They shape the culture and define
the character of our company. They guide how we behave and make decisions.
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STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES

More precise and detailed statements of the goals

Our strategic objectives are a medium term step in the journey towards the vision what we are doing over the
next few years. We will build on our core regulated business based on financial discipline to deliver sustainable
growth and superior financial performance. Based on our vision, we have chosen to give priority to the
following overall strategic objectives that create the foundation for strong growth and focus on confinuous

value enhancement.

Building revenue
momentum, better
marginal mprovement, rank among
high cash generation, the top in markets
earnings per share where we do
growth and growing business
returns on capital

Intending to

Striving for
a balanced
growth of
revenues

Growing strongly
compared
to our markets

INTENDING TO RANK AMONG THE TOP IN MARKETS
WHERE WE DO BUSINESS

We offer leading services in the fields of financial markets.
Our products facilitate solving both short ferm and
long-term funding requirements. We deliver innovative
solutions to cater customers’ diverse needs for our
services. Our services lead the field in tferms of quality and
sophistication. In the area of capital market operations,
we offer a broad, modular range of products — with well-
engineered components like corporate re-engineering,
capital restructuring, exploring diverse funding sources,
etc. the constant, ongoing development of our products
in our selected markets, leasing, term finance, SME
finance, real estate finance and issue management,
underwriting, portfolio management, share frading and
corporate advisory services through subsidiaries helps us
to rank among the leading financial institutions.

GROWING STRONGLY COMPARED TO OUR MARKETS

Our strength in innovation, our market expertise, our
focus on the constantly rising level of quality portfolio
and our gearing fowards SME markets shall allow us to
achieve targeted revenue in the coming years. Assuming
no further crashes in capital market, we anficipate
considerable growth in revenue in coming years, even
with a relatively small rise in - macroeconomic indicators.
Our growth course will be buoyed by the rising demand
among the customers for our products and services.

Regard our Growing
employees as the key

internally and
factorin externally

our success

S~ —

Enhancing
our efficiency
and productivity

Safeguarding our
growth in the long term
with a solid
financing profile

ENHANCING OUR EFFICIENCY AND PRODUCTIVITY

In recent times, we have made our presence even more
efficient and productive providing services more in the
areas that give better return. We will continue to pursue
this policy systematically. The interaction of our growth,
efficiency and productivity orientation allows us to offer
competitive price always expected by our customers.
Our cost discipline throughout the group extends across
all stages of operations more particularly in the areas of
fund mobilization and where possible, we utilize multi-
sourcing and secure our volumes in the long term.

STRIVING FOR A BALANCED GROWTH OF REVENUES

In our two pillars —the financing operations and the capital
market operations — we have a stable footing that should
protect us from the cyclical fluctuations of the financial
markets. This is why we are aiming to generate major
revenue directly from financing activities and adequate
amount from capital market operations in the medium
term. Today, the share of revenue from financing activities
is still higher than capital market. We are pursuing three
strategic directions in this regard: Firstly, we are investing
specifically in the SME sector and large industries having
good repayment tfrack record and strong cash flow
management; Secondly, we are actively increasing our
endeavors in managing our investment portfolio with the
objective of minimizing the NPL at a threshold level; Thirdly,
we are boosting our business with customer-specific
solutions. More importance will be atfached to the growth
of SME financing in this regard.

...We deliver innovative solutions to cater customers’ diverse needs for our services. Our services lead the field in terms of quality and
sophistication. In the area of capital market operations, we offer a broad, modular range of products — with well-engineered components like
corporate reengineering, fund re- structuring, exploring diverse funding sources, etc.
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... As an integrated financial service provider, UCL Group operates in a dynamic market environment
characterized by high pressure in terms of competition, innovation and costs. We counter this pressure

foresightedly with our corporate strategy.

Business strategy is
concemed with
decoding which markets

Satisfying customers
(Meeting customer needs)

Running the business (organizing
resources in the most effecient
and effective way)

and activities UCL should
be involved in; where it
wants to be; and how it is
going to get there.

Strategy is about
making high-level
decisions and forms the
management
game plan for...

Achieving corporate objectives
(building on our corporate
framework)

GROWING INTERNALLY AND EXTERNALLY

UCL hos been growing organically and has also
successfully integrated with its subsidiaries namely
UniCap Securities Limited and UniCap Investments
Limited. UCL operates as one family and pursues
common goals with the help of a strong identity based
on the values given on page 09 of this report, that
creates the requirements for a competitive, high-
performance culture. Our proven ability to achieve
internal and external growth will aid our development in
the future as well.

REGARD OUR EMPLOYEES AS THE KEY FACTOR IN OUR
SUCCESS

As an innovative company that plays a leading role in
quality, the expertise of our employees is of enormous
importance as it would not be possible to implement this
strategy successfully without them. Utilizing comprehensive
promotion and training activities, we strive fo be seen as
an employer of choice at all levels on the job market.

SAFEGUARDING OUR GROWTH IN THE LONG TERM
WITH A SOLID FINANCING PROFILE

Our goal is to ensure that ongoing investment
requirements are financed from the operating cash flow.
Other investment projects should be financed from new

Beating the competition
(strategies and tactics to gain
competitive advantage)

and additional debt fo achieve a constant stabilization
or improvement in the UCL's costs of capital. Owing
in particular to our current investment climate and the
effects of the lingering liquidity problem on the financial
markets as well, we are pursuing the target of
maintaining the gearing ratio at a realistic level. If
justified by special financing reasons or special market
circumstances, we can rise above this level for an
appropriate period.

BUILDING REVENUE MOMENTUM, GOOD MARGIN
IMPROVEMENT, HIGH CASH GENERATION, EARNINGS PER
SHARE GROWTH AND GROWING RETURNS ON CAPITAL
We are well positioned in markets with atftractive long
ferm growth prospects sustained by the continuing
demand for financial services. We have a clear
investment led growth strategy focused on building
revenue momenfum across all our businesses. This,
together with improvements in cost efficiency and
organizational effectiveness, will flow through operating
profitability and cash flow.

We are well positioned in markets with attractive long-term growth prospects sustained by the continuing demand for financial services. We have a
clear investment led growth strategy focused on building revenue momentum across all our businesses.

Union Capital Limited | 11



///l Annual Report 2020

BUSINESS PRINCIPLES

The roadmap on how UCL operates and why we make our decision

Certain principles are so fundamental to our success that we would like to follow in every business we operate.
If we can adhere to these principles — and they are not in order of importance — we will reach our goal of
becoming the best financial services provider in Bangladesh. We also hope those give us a roadmap on how
and why we make our decisions. We would like to create a financial group that all can be proud of, and we
are confident that, working together, we will build one of the best financial services companies in Bangladesh.

ASPIRE TO BE THE BEST
Grow organically providing superior services in every business we operate

To be a great Company must have the ability fo deliver good returns and solid growth over time. To achieve these results, we
must provide our customers with a broad, complete and quality products and services. We must also demonstrate our ability
to grow organically (e.g. new products, gaining market share).

Grow

organically

BUSINESS
PRINCIPLES

N

Strong
blance sheet

Consistently delivering the best products in a cost
effective way

We must offer outstanding products and services and
being helpful, courteous, quick and consistent follow up
in the customer’s best interest. We need to be keenly
aware of the competitive landscape and quick to act.
We must exceed customers’ expectations and

constantly make it easier for them to do business with us.

Innovate in all actions we take

We need to build forward-looking ideas info every
conversation, every analysis and every new product we
look at for that we will take some calculated risks,
knowing that some may fail.

SN NN

Accountability

Superior Reputation &
performance moral

AN

. Outstandin

Products

JAN
Concern '.

Others

Leadership

Create strong brands that carry a commitment of
quality and integrity

UCL Group is not only a promise to customers, but also a
commitment we make to ourselves about who we are
and just how good we want to be. This commitment
goes well beyond creating a name. To be powerful and
frusted, our brands must be brought to life by the people
who represent them for which we need to deliver on the
promise every day. We want to be one of the best
financial services providers in Bangladesh. Because of
our excellent platform, we believe this is within our reach.
We cannot promise specific outcomes or risk free results.
What we can and will promise is to share the truth, and
offer honest assessments of our businesses and our
prospects; act with integrity and honor; do the right thing
so that our shareholders, employees, customers and
community can be proud.

... We cannot promise specific outcomes or risk-free results. What we can and will promise is to share the truth, and offer honest assessments of our
businesses and our prospects; act with integrity and honor; do the right thing so that our shareholders, employees, customers and the community

can be proud.
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EXECUTE MAGNIFICENTLY
Maintain strong financial discipline

Financial discipline is foundation of great companies,
particularly financial companies. Financial discipline
including sound accounting standards, transparent
public reporting and great management information
systems leads to high-quality earnings that are recurring
and predictable in nature; yields high returns on capital;
produces good margins; and provides reasonable risk
relative to the capital deployed. Financial discipline must
be matched with superior—isk management. If we
properly manage risk, we should get a good return
through the cycle, not just during the good times. It is a
frade-off we will always be prepared to make.

Create and maintain a strong financial condition

A strong balance sheet is critical fo manage successful
business. Having appropriate reserves, strong capital
ratios and strong credit ratings allows us to withstand
difficult events while giving us the flexibility to deploy our
capital as we see fit such as increasing our dividends,
taking sectoral exposure, investing in subsidiaries,
investing in our businesses.

To build a strong balance sheet, we must thoroughly
understand all our assets and liabilities; make sure that
we use sound, and appropriate accounting; and have
strong conftrols in place.

Maintain the best systems and operations

Financially strong companies consistently build and
develop the best infrastructure. The best systems and
operations give them the ability to meet the needs of
customers and exceed their expectations for
service. Superior performance requires spending more
and getting more from every amount we spend. We
must relentlessly focus on integrating and upgrading
technology, and on aggressively consolidating,
streamlining and standardizing our operations, all of
which help to push decision-making and authority to the
field. We believe that efficient operations will be critical
in the financial services business, and therefore we need
to embrace and integrate them into everything we
do. We need to continually strive to give our customers
more, better and faster.

Eliminate bureaucracy

While appropriate rules and procedures are critical fo the
control and discipline of an entity, unnecessary rules
franslate info  bureaucracy, which destroys initiative,
neutralizes passion, stifles creativity, eliminates accountability,
and makes it hard for people to do a good job and
for managers to manage well.

///l Annual Report 2020

Maintain good governance practices and internal
controls

Good governance is vital for effective management. It
fies together all our businesses we do with a common set
of rules, expectations and oversight activities. These help
safeguard ourreputation, which we believe is one of our
most important assets, and align the company’s
performance with the best interests of our shareholders.

Measure performance through a balanced scorecard

A mark of a winning company is its ability to outperform its
competitors, regardless of economic conditions. A
company may improve profitability in the short run by
tfaking on additional risk and cutting back on
investments but it may be the kind of growth one
comes to regret. Our commitment is to build UCL Group
that can thrive in any environment.

To reach that level of performance requires using a
balanced scorecard that goes beyond earnings to
address many questions, such as:

* Are we recruiting and developing ftalented people?
* Are we innovating better products?
¢ Are we relentlessly improving our core processes?

*  Are we making good returns on capital?

As important as strategy is, we have got to execute to win.
Execution involves every employee and every contact we
have with customers. We must act quickly on problems;
drive for results, not just activities; and ensure detailed
follow-up so that we meet our commitments.

BUILD A GREAT AND WINNING CULTURE
Operate with the highest standards of integrity

Ethical behavior does not just happen rather it needs
to be cultivated and repeatedly affirmed throughout
the organization. Maintaining the highest standards of
integrity involves being honest and doing the right thing
for our customers, employees, shareholders and all other
partners.

Train and retain great people

We need to continually hire and frain talents. They always
drive for superior performance, building teamwork within
and across our group business. They act quickly on fough
issues, relentlessly  strive  to  improve  performance,
demonstrate a passion to win and develop their colleagues.

...Business principles are so fundamental to the success that we would like to follow in every business we operate. If we can adhere to those
principles we will reach our goal of becoming one of the best financial services provider in Bangladesh.
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Be open and honest with ourselves, our colleagues,
our shareholders and our community.

We must build a culture based on fruth, knowledge,
constructive debate, a passion to win, and the courage to
face and fix mistakes. Our responsibility is to create a
company that promotes this kind of constructive
exchange. We believe this is the hardest part of
leadership we must have the fortitude and courage to
take action and do the right thing. Leadership is an
honor and a privilege, and carries the responsibility to
set the right example.

All our employees must be engaged in facing the
challenges and solving problems. The key is to never stop
learning, to share ideas and always acknowledge
mistakes. Our commitment is to create a self sustaining
culture that strives for continual improvement, which will
ensure the health of this company in the coming years.

Fair share of performance

We want employees fo think and act like owners and
partners. We want to offer them an appropriate share of
financial performance.

A successful Company always provides people with
competitive compensation, the opportunity to benefit
as the company grows and a rewarding career path.

Foster an environment of respect and inclusiveness

We need to constanifly remind ourselves that the most
important thing we can do for employees is to build a
healthy and vibrant company that freats people with
respect and creates opportunity. We have to remember
that we all support one another. Above all, it means
doing what is right for the company and the customers.
We strive to create a more inclusive work environment

that develops the best talent. Building a diverse and
inclusive  work environment requires effort and
perseverance, which is why we will make inclusiveness and
diversity an integral part of how we manage the Group.

Give back to our society

We believe that building a strong and vibrant company, will
eventually benefit not only our shareholders, but
everyone we ftouch. It is what enables us to give back to
our community. In one sense, we view ourselves as a
small business. But we are striving to be as supportive as
we can. We are committed to adding value by focusing
on issues that are wuniversally important, including
education and community development.

Our greatest source of pride, however, is our employees,
who contribute a good amount of time and talent to
worthwhile causes of the society. Our employees continue
to volunteer their participation in community work.

Eventually, it all comes down to people. Creating a
winning feam and a self-sustaining culture takes hard
work, and there is no substitute for it. Teams win because
they are disciplined, they work well together, they
execute consistently and they have a passion to win.

We follow our guiding principles to:

e Deliver legendary customer experiences;

¢ Be an extraordinary place of work;

¢ Operate with excellance;

¢ Understand our business;

e Take only risk we unerstand and can manage;
e Enhance our brand;

¢ Increase shareholders’ value

...As important as strategy is, we have got to execute to win. Execution involves every employee and every contact we have with customers. We
must act quickly on problems; drive for results, not just activities; and ensure detailed follow-up so that we meet our commitments.
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ETHICAL RESPONSIBILITIES TO THE CUSTOMERS

We always think from the customers’ point of view.

We treat our customers with care and courtesy, and
accommodate customer complaints and suggestions
with humility.

We safeguard customer assets.
We avoid unfair dealing with customers.
We do not accept gifts or enfertainment from customers.

lllicit monetary dealing with customers is not tolerated
for whatever reason.

Management of customer assets is, in principle, done
only with customer consent.

Customer assets must not be used for the benefit of
the Company, directors or employees.

We handle customers’personal and financial information
as required by law.

ETHICAL RESPONSIBILITIES TO THE SHAREHOLDERS

We provide long-term, stable return to shareholders

through sensible investment and prudent management.

We prepare and retain financial records in accordance
with BFRS and applicable rules, and provide company
information to shareholders accurately and fairly.

ETHICAL RESPONSIBILITIES TO THE SOCIETY

We comply with all applicable laws, rules, and
regulations, and uphold the highest standard of business
ethics and business principles.

We compete fairly, relying on the merits of our products
and services.

We refrain from unreasonable business practices and
create new standards for competition, to promote
healthy growth of the industry.

ETHICAL RESPONSIBILITIES TO THE COMPANY

We respect the dignity and rights of each other.
We are a family committed fo common values.

Supervisors, subordinates, and co-workers all must
work to build mutual tfrust and respect.

Supervisors must not take advantage of their position
fo give unjust orders or demand gifts from subordinates.
Any kind of harassment in the workplace is not tolerated.

We safeguard corporate property.
We safeguard company'’s tangible and infangible assefts.

Company’s assefs must not be used for personal
gain, and all reasonable measures must be taken to
keep business information secure.

ETHICAL RESPONSIBILITIES TO THE PROFESSION

We maintain professional competence and keep
abreast of cutting edge information and knowledge,
contfinually developing professional and  financial
expertise.

We fulfill our fiduciary duty to customers, and faithfully
do our part as members of UCL Group.

...Behaving in an ethical manner can create positive business results. A business environment that promotes and upholds strong values is
usually a happier and more productive workplace, and customers receive good service so they keep coming back.
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FINANCING AND INVESTMENT PRODUCTS
Lease Finance

Term Finance

SME Finance

Project Finance

Syndication Finance
Apartment Finance

Bridge Finance

Car Finance

Professionals Loan

Real Estate Finance
Unsecured Personal Loan
New Entrepreneur Finance
Women Enfrepreneur Finance
Construction & Renovation Finance

Retail Service

CAPITAL MARKET SERVICES

IPO Management

Rights Issue Management
Underwriting

Portfolio Management
Margin Loan

Pre-IPO Placement

Share Trading

Investment Management
Corporate Restructuring
Corporate Advisory Services
Equity Investment

Fund Raising
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DEPOSIT PRODUCTS

Fixed Term Deposit

Monthly Income Deposit
Periodic Income Deposit
Double Money Deposit
Triple Money Deposit
Cumulative Income Deposit
Millionaire Plus (MPlus)
Marriage Deposit

Monthly Saving Scheme (MSS)
Profit First Deposit

Home Planning Deposit
Education Deposit

Women Entfrepreneur Deposit






STATEMENT FROM THE CHAIRMAN

Honorable Shareholders,

| extend a warm and gracious welcome to all our
esteemed shareholders to the 23< Annual General
Meeting of Union Capital Limited (“UCL") on behalf of
the Board of Directors. | feel greatly honored and
privileged in taking this opportunity to report to our
valued shareholders and present the Annual Report for
the financial year ending on 31 December 2020 along
with the Auditors’ report.

You are all aware that the year 2019 witnessed a massive
erosion of stakeholders' confidence in the Non-Banking
Financial Institution (“NBFI”) sector primarily due fo (i)
liquidation of a NBFI; and (ii) the unearthing of significant
iregularities/embezzlement in a number of other NBFls. This
unfortunate phenomenon, coupled with a catastrophic
performance in capital market operations, had resulted
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in a net consolidated loss of BDT 1,057,385,950 for UCL for
the financial year ending on 31 December 2019.

As the UCL family began 2020 with the determination
and enthusiasm to make a recovery, a crushing blow
was delivered by the deadly global Covid-19 pandemic
that brought the entire world to a standstill. Business
operations of UCL were completely halted for a period
of 66 days due o the general holiday announced by the
Bangladesh government posed the biggest challenge
that Covid-19 had to offer. Although the economy
began to operate in a limited scale after the lockdown
was relaxed by the government around 30 May 2020,
most businesses were not in a position to service their
debt repayment installments even at the end of 2020.



Despite all odds, by the blessings of the Almighty, the
proactive efforts of our dedicated employees under the
guidance of the Board of Directors and senior
management resulted in the following accomplishments
for the financial year ending on December 31+, 2020:

(1) The net consolidated loss of UCL stood at BDT
532,367,556, which is a 49.66% reduction from the net
consolidated loss of the previous financial year;

(2) The reduction in the net consolidated loss was
achieved despite (i) maintaining provision of BDT
35,734,846 against income receivable from Unicap
Investments Limited; and (i) waiver of interest
equivalent to BDT 232,500,000 which would have been
otherwise payable by Unicap Investments Limited.

(3) The net loss from capital market operations was BDT
33,640,269 as against loss of BDT 73,815,072 of the
previous financial year; and

(4) An amount equivalent to BDT 231,069,423 was
recovered from written off loan accounts.

The above achievements indicate that the UCL group is
firmly on its path to return to profitability on or before
2023, In Sha Allah.

On behalf of the UCL group, | take this opportunity to
convey deep and profound sadness for each and every
single life that fell victim to Covid-19. We lost one of our
most respected Director and former Chairman, Mr. M.
Faizur Rahman. The invaluable contributions of Mr. Rahman
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to UCL over the years will always be remembered in
gratitude by all stakeholders of UCL.

I would like to express my gratitude to all the
shareholders of UCL for your unwavering support and
frust, which have been the key source of our inspiration
behind taking the UCL group to new heights. | thank our
regulators, Bangladesh Bank, Bangladesh Securities &
Exchange Commission and the Stock Exchanges for their
continued guidance and support extended to us.

| conclude by reiterating my appreciation to all the
shareholders of the Company who have taken the time
and efforts to attend the Annual General Meeting in this
pandemic situation. The suggestions, advice and
constructive criticism offered by our shareholders at the
general meeting have always proved to be immensely
helpful. | eagerly look forward to receiving your
thoughtful inputs at this 234 Annual General Meeting
which will contribute fowards UCL's improvement in the
coming days.

Wishing you all good health and life.

With warm regards,

Sd/-
Chowdhury Tanzim Karim
Chairman
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LETTER FROM THE MANAGING DIRECTOR & CEO

Dear Shareholders & Stakeholders,

| take this opportunity to thank you all for your continuous
support, inspiration and strength in this hard fime. It is a
pleasure for me to present the Annual Report of Union
Capital Limited (UCL) for the year 2020 before you all.

Before describing our own issues, let us have a look on
macro-economic issue. The year 2020 will be termed as
unprecedented year with the spread of COVID-19 as a
global pandemic. It hit the world so hard that it literally
brought the world to stand sfill. It has disrupted the social,
economic and financial structures of the entire world,
nothing like that was ever experiences in the modern
history. In spite of having many adversaries, Bangladesh
is making progress in various socio-economic indices
and made a noteworthy progress in GDP growth,
harnessing inflation, per capita GDP growth, foreign
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reserve and so on. In 2020 Bangladesh managed to
register 5.24 percent real GDP growth which was
obviously much lower than the growth rate of 8.15%
during 2019. The private sector credit growth was 8.37%
against a target of 11.50% in 2020. During the
nationwide lockdown, millions lost jobs, poverty rate
doubled and many businesses folded up. Exports hit rock
bottom as the importing countries themselves were
finding it difficult to keep their economies afloat. The
agricultural  production, remittance, the stimulus
package declared by the government, the reopening,
and the uptick in domestic demand put the country on
the path of recovery and the Country reported an
impressive GDP growth in FY19-20 despite prevailing
pandemic situation and its negative impact both locally
and internationally.




The Financial Sector including Union Capital Ltd. had fo
face huge challenges in 2020 like lack of trust of
depositors to deposit their money in the NBFI sector, rising
NPL rate, cash flow mismatch, poor performance of
Stock market and withdrawal of funds by the Banks from
NBFI etc. The financial sector continued to face liquidity
pressure since FY19. Like all other businesses, the business
of UCL was also seriously affected by COVID-19
pandemic, particularly during the first half of the year.
Besides that, 2020 was also a year of stock market
disappointment except few momentum picked up at
the year end. The fresh lending by UCL was almost
halted for liquidity crisis. The decrease of operating
income of UCL in the year 2020 was due to loss of
Subsidiaries in capital market operation and shrinkage of
income generating portfolio. Due to suspension of
intferest income and keeping significant provision
resulting from non-payment of the loan currently exposed
with our merchant banking subsidiary contributed a lot for
incurring loss for the year under review. By taking some
special measures like reduction of confrollable
operatfing expenses, collection from Non-performing
loan accounts, the Management of the Company
reduced the loss of the Company by around 50 percent
compared to previous year. Our two subsidiaries,
operating through the capital market, attained adverse
repercussions on its income. Due to withdrawal of huge
fund by the depositors and drastic fall in fresh deposit
mobilization, we could not extend finance facility to the
prospective clients. Consequently, like the earlier year, UCL
experienced financial loss for consecutive two years.
Consolidated EPS for 2020 has improved from previous year
due to increment of other operating income by deploying
recovery effort especially for write off clients, increment of
investment income, reduction of operating expenses by
almost 29% from previous year and decrease in provision
requirement than the previous year.
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However, | must acknowledge that in the recent years,
the Company has faced some headwinds. It is affected
by the overall financial sector frend of asset quality
deterioration due to slowdown in the overall corporate
segment of the economy. Our focus in the short ferm will
be to reduce our operational expenses, improve
efficiency & productivity of existing resources, increase
income of our Subsidiaries, mobilize deposits from the
individuals and make all possible steps for recovery from
the default clients. We expect, the economy will bounce
back to its frend growth rate. But that projection is entirely
dependent on how soon Bangladesh is able to bring the
pandemic under control. Keeping this adversary in mind,
we are going to set the strategies and priorities to achieve
our business target in 2021.

| would like to thank our Employees for facing the
challenge amid many adversities during the year. UCL is
always committed to serve its customers well, increase
efficiency of its employees and reward its shareholders.
We are maintaining a total compliance culture to
safeguard the interest of the Company and ifs
Stakeholders. In recognition of quality of Annual Report,
fransparency, ethical practices, true compliance, good
corporate governance and fair disclosures, Union
Capital Limited received awards from ICSB and ICAB for
several times. My sincerest gratitude to our valued
customers, shareholders and stakeholders for their
continued support and trust in us, the regulators for their
guidance and our Board of Directors for their pragmatic
vision, valuable advice and leadership. We are looking
forward for a better tomorrow.

Wishing you the best,

Sd/-
Chowdhury Manzoor Liaquat
Managing Director & CEO
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MANAGEMENT REVIEW & FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Outlines UCL’s operations and financial condition

The Managing Director & CEO and the Chief Financial
Officer have signed a statement which can be found on
page 81 outlining management’s responsibility for financial
information in  the annual consolidated financial
statements.

This report describes UCL's operations and financial
condition for the year ended 31 December 2020. This
should be read in conjunction with our consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2020. Unless otherwise indicated, all amounts are stated
in Bangladesh Taka and have been derived from
financial statements prepared in accordance with
International  Financial Reporting Standards  (IFRS),
International Accounting Standards (IAS) as adopted by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Bangladesh
(ICAB), the Circulars issued by Bangladesh Bank, the
Securities and Exchange Rules 1987, the Companies Act
1994 and other applicable regulatory requirements.

Certain prior year data has been reclassified to conform
to the current year's presentation, including restatements
arising from fransaction of certain businesses between
subsidiaries.

Who We Are

Established in 1998, Union Capital Limited Financial
Group is a diversified financial service provider based in
Dhaka. UCL has operations in both the principal
segments of financial market: capital market and
financing & investment activities. Together with its
principal subsidiaries, UniCap Securities Limited and
UniCap Investments Limited, UCL Group offers a wide
range of complementary investment products like
term/lease finance, SME finance, real estate finance,
equity finance, etfc. brokerage services, issue
management, underwriting, portfolio management and
corporate advisory services. UCL has 7 offices located in
Dhaka, Chattogram, Sylhet, Gazipur, Narshingdi and
Bogura. UCL is a publicly traded Company listed in both
the Dhaka and Chattogram Stock Exchange.

UCL's business planning process is rigorous and considers
the prevailing economic conditions, customers’ growing
needs and the opportunities available across our lines of
business. It includes clear and direct accountability for
annual performance that is measured against internal
and external benchmarks and progress towards our
strategic priorities.

Our Strategy

Changes in the economic environment and their effects
on our customers are ongoing. UCL focuses on helping its
customers and giving them confidence that they are
making the right financial choices. It also drives the
employees to deliver their best in all endeavors.
Recognizing that a company’s first responsibility is to be
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well managed, we believe that the strength of our
business model, balance sheet, risk management
framework and leadership team will confinue fo
generate sustainable growth. We remain steadfastly
committed to our strategy, our customers, our
shareholders, regulators, lenders and the society as a
whole which we operate in.

Our Priorities in 2021
» Keeping our non-performing loan/leases as low as possible.

e Come back to our normal trend of our business
considering effect of COVID-19.

e Drive quality earnings growth across all of our
businesses by focusing on industry leading customer
experience and enhancing operating efficiency;

« Build deeper customers’ relationships to deliver quality
and quick sefrvices;

e Develop our businesses in selected markets to grow
with our customers;

o Sustain a culture that focuses on customers, high
performance and our people; and

* Become the employer of choice.

Caution regarding forward-looking statements

Our communications often include written or oral
forward-looking statements. Statements of this type are
included in this Annual Report, or in other communications
are regarded as forward-looking statements. Forward-looking
statements may involve, but not limited to, comments with
respect to our objectives and priorities for 2021 and beyond.

Such forward looking statements may include, without
limitation, statements relating to the following:

* our strategies, objectives, goals or business plans;
e our future economic performance or prospects;

* the probable effect on our future performance of
certain contingencies; and

e assumptions underlying any such statements.

By their nature, forward-looking statements require us to
make assumptions and are subject to inherent risks and
uncertainties. There is significant risk that predictions,
forecasts, conclusions or projections will not prove to be
accurate, that our assumptions may not be correct and
that actual results may differ materially from such
predictions, forecasts, conclusions or projections. We
caution readers of this Annual Report not to place
undue reliance on our forward-looking statements as a
number of factors could cause actual future results,
conditions, actions or events to differ materially from the
targets, expectations, estimates or intentions expressed
in the forward looking statements.



These factors include the followings but not limited to:
« general economic and market conditions of Bangladesh;
« strength of the regional and global economy;

« degree of competition in the business areas in which
we operate;

e changes in laws or in supervisory regulations,
guidelines including additional capital requirements,
strict monitoring about interest rate and liquidity
requirements and guidance;

e accuracy and completeness of the information we
obtain with respect to our customers;

« general political environment;
o performance of our capital market;

« ability fo maintain sufficient liquidity;

« ability to repay the liabilities as and when they fall due;

« market and interest rate fluctuations and interest rate levels;

* the ability of customers to meet their obligations to us;
¢ the effects of, and changes in fiscal, monetary and tax policies;

« operational factors such as systems failure, human
error, or the failure to implement procedures properly;

« the effects of changes in accounting policies or practices;
¢ the ability to retain and recruit qualified personnel;

* the ability to increase market share and control expenses;
« ability fo adopt technological changes;

« compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; and

« our ability to anficipate and effectively manage risks
associated with all of the foregoing factors.

We caution that the foregoing list is not exhaustive of all
possible factors. Other factors could adversely affect our
actual performance.

For more information, please see the discussion below,
which outlines in detail certain key factors that may
affect our future results. When relying on forward-looking
statements to make decisions with respect to UCL,
investors and others should carefully consider these
factors, as well as other uncertainties and potential
events, and the inherent uncertainty of forward-looking
statements. UCL does not undertake to update any
forward-looking statements, whether written or oral, that
may be made from time to fime by the Company or on
its behalf, except as required by law. The forward-looking
information contained in this document is presented for the
purpose of assisting our shareholders in understanding
our financial position as at and for the period ended on
the dates presented, as well as our strategic priorities
and objectives, and may not be appropriate for other
purposes.

Factors that may affect our future result

As noted in the preceding caution regarding forward-
looking statements, all forward-looking statements and
information, by their nature, are subject to inherent risks and
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uncertainties, both general and specific, which may cause
actual results to differ materially from the expectations
expressed in any forward-looking statement. The report on
risk management starting on page 127 describes a number
of risks, including credit, market, liquidity and funding,
operational, legal and regulatory, business, strategic,
reputation and environmental. Should our risk management
framework prove ineffective, there could be a material
adverse impact on our financial position. The followings
outline some additional risks and uncertainties:

Company's business and earnings are affected by
general business and political conditions

The performance of UCL is influenced by economic
conditions prevailing in the country as well as global
economy. Downturn in economies especially liquidity crisis
could result in a general reduction in business activity and
a consequent fall in income of our Company. It could also
cause a slow recovery of our investments.

The financial performance of the Company is
affected by customers’ credibility

Risks arising from changes in portfolio quality and the
recoverability of loans/leases are inherent in a wide
range of our business. Adverse change in portfolio
quality of our customers or deterioration in economies of
Bangladesh and even global economic condifions, or
events arising from systematic risks could affect the
recoverability and value of Company's investments. This
would deteriorate the asset quality as well as reduce
earnings and require an increase in the provision for
doubtful losses resulting in lower profitability.

Changes in interest rates and other market factors
may affect our business

Changes in interest rate levels, yield curves and spreads may
affect our interest income. The performance of financial
markets, monetary and fiscal policy may cause changes
in the value of Company's investments and portfolios.
UCL has implemented risk management systems fo
mitigate and control these risks and other market risks to
which the Company is exposed. However, it is difficult to
predict with accuracy the likely changes in economic
and market conditions and to anticipate the effects that
such changes could have on the company's financial
performance and business operations.

Operational risks are inherent in Company's business

Our businesses are dependent on the ability to process a
very large number of transactions efficiently and
accurately. Operational losses can results from fraud,
errors by employees, failure to document fransaction
properly, failure to comply with regulatory requirements
and code of business conduct and inadequacy in
design of policies, procedures including ineffective
implementation of those policies and procedures.
Although, UCL has implemented risk confrols and loss
mitigation actions and substantial resources are devoted
to developing efficient procedures and to staff training. It is
only possible to be reasonably, but not absolutely, certain
that such procedures will be effective in confroling each
of the operational risks faced by our company.
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The Company's business is subject to shtringent
regulations and regulatory overseeing

The Company is subject to laws, regulations and
guidelines issued by Bangladesh Bank, Bangladesh
Securities and Exchange Commission, the Companies
Act 1994, the Financial Institution Act 1993, the Income
Tax Ordinance 1984, other applicable laws and
regulations. Our capital market activities are also
monitored by Stock Exchanges. This supervision and
regulation, if changed could materially affect Company's
business, the products and services offered or the value
of assefs.

Future growth of Company's earnings and shareholders’
value depend on strategic decisions

The Company devotes substantial management and
planning resources to the development of strategic
plans for organic growth. If these strategic plans do not
meet with success, the Company's earnings could grow
more slowly or decline.

The risk of litigation is inherent in Company's operation

In the ordinary course of the Company's business, legal
actions, claims by and against the Company may arise.

The outcome of such legal proceedings could materially
affect the financial performance of the Company.

The Company is exposed to the risk of changes in tax
legislation and its interpretation

The Company's activities are subject to tax at various
rates. Actions by the Government to withdraw any tax
benefit or impose additional taxes would affect the
profitability of the Company. Revisions to tax legislation
orits interpretation might also affect Company's results in
future.

A description on specific risks that UCL may likely to face
is given in the last part of this section.

Changes in Accounting Policies, Estimates and IAS/IFRS

We did not adopt any new significant accounting
policies during the year 2020. The following standards,
interpretations and amendments thereto will be relevant
to UCL Group. The Group's initial view of the impact of
these accounting changes is outlined below:

Pronouncement

Amendments to
IFRS 16, Leases,
COVID-19-
Related Rent
Concessions

Nature of change

This amendment permits lessees not to assess whether
eligible COVID-19 related rent concessions are lease
modifications, and account for them as if they were not
lease modifications.

Eligible rent concessions are those arising as a ‘direct
consequence’ of COVID-19 and for which:

e The revised consideration for the lease remains
‘substantially the same’ or is less than the
consideration for the lease before the concession;

e Any reduced payments were originally due on or
before June 30, 2021; and

¢ There are no other ‘substantive’ changes to the lease.

For lessees, this is an optional practical expedient to be
applied consistently to all lease contracts with similar
characteristics and in  similar circumstances. The
practical expedient is not available to lessors.

Effective date

Annual periods

beginning on or
after 1 January

2020.

Impact

The Group is assessing
the impact of
adopting the
amended.

IFRS 17, Insurance
Confracts

IFRS 17 provides the first comprehensive guidance to
accounting for insurance contracts under IFRS Standards. It
aims to increase fransparency and to reduce diversity in
the accounting for insurance contracts.

The effective date of IFRS 17 is pending a two-year
deferral to 2023, to be confirmed by the IASB Board
mid-2020. Early adoption is permitted.

Financial periods
beginning on or
after 1 January
2021

The Group is assessing
the impact of
adopting the
amended.

Disclosure on Control Procedures and Internal Control
over Financial Reporting

Disclosure on Control Procedures

Disclosure on control procedures are designed to provide
reasonable assurance that all relevant information is
gathered and reported to senior management, including
the Managing Director & CEO and the Chief Financial
Officer (CFO), on a timely basis so that appropriate
decisions can be made regarding public disclosure.
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An evaluation of the effectiveness of the design and
operation of our disclosure on confrol procedures was
conducted as at 31 December 2020 by UCL Management
under the supervision of the CEO and the CFO. Based on
this evaluation, the CEO and the CFO have concluded
that as at 31 December 2020, our disclosure on control
procedures are adequate, appropriate and effective
both in terms of design, implementation and monitoring.



Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Internal control over financial reporting is designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements in accordance with |AS/IFRS and the
requirements of Bangladesh Bank and Bangladesh
Securities and Exchange Commission, the Company Act
1994 and other applicable laws and regulations.

Management is responsible for designing, establishing
and maintaining adequate internal control systems over
financial reporting for UCL Financial Group. UCL's
internal control over financial reporting includes policies
and procedures that:

« pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
fransactions and disposal of the assets of UCL;

« provide reasonable assurance that fransactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of the
financial statements in accordance with IAS/IFRS and
the requirements of Bangladesh Bank, Bangladesh
Securities and Exchange Commission, Companies Act,
as applicable, and that receipts and expenditures of
UCL are being made only in accordance with
authorization by management and Board of Directors of
UCL; and

e provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention
or timely detection of the unauthorized acquisition,
use or disposal of UCL's assets that could have a
material effect on the financial position as described
in the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal confrol over
financial reporting can provide only reasonable
assurance and may not prevent or detect all sorts of
misstatements.

The Management, under the supervision of the CEO, the
CFO and Head of ICC has evaluated the effectiveness
of our internal control over financial reporting using the
framework and criteria established in Internal Confrol.
Based on this evaluation, management has concluded
that internal control over financial reporting was
appropriate and effective as at 31 December 2020.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in our internal control over
financial reporting in 2020 that have materially affected,
or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal
control over financial reporting. The ongoing preparation
of financial statements in accordance with the
amendments in IASs/IFRSs did not change the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Auditors services and fees

The external auditors of UCL, K. M. HASAN & CO.,
Chartered Accountants were not engaged to perform
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any of the following services other than annual statutory
audit of the company and the audit of its subsidiaries
namely, UniCap Securities Limited and UniCap
Investments Limited:

¢ Appraisal or valuation services or fairness opinions;
* Financial information systems design and implementation;

» Book-keeping or other services related to the accounting
records or financial statements;

« Broker-dealer services;
« Actuarial services;
« Internal audit services.

» Audit/certification services on compliance of corporate
governance

¢ Any other service that the Audit Committee determines.

The auditors are paid an amount of Tk.2,00,000 net of
VAT for their audit of Union Capital Limited.

2020 Financial performance and financial condition review

Challenges faced in 2020

« Huge negative impact of COVID-19;

o Liquidity crisis;

* Volatile capital market;

o Lack of depositor's confidence in NBFI sector;
¢ Increased competition; and

¢ Maintenance of asset quality.
Major Financial indicators of 2020

Major performance indicators in 2020 were as under:

¢ Investment of the Group decreased to Tk. 14,293.28
million from Tk. 14,932.89 million registering negative
growth of (4.28) percent due to impact of COVID-19
and liquidity crunch 2020;

e Consolidated net profit/ (loss) for the year was Tk.
(532.37) million as against Tk. (1,057.3%) million of 2019;

o Customers deposits was amounting Tk. 8,797.44 million
in 2020 and 9,9214.10 million in 2019 registering 11.26%
negative growth;

¢ Shareholders’ equity was Tk. 711.57 million in 2020 and
1,243.94 million in 2019;

o Total operating income was Tk. (133.80) million as
against Tk. (514.69) million of 2019;

« A consolidated earnings per share was Tk. (3.08) as
against Tk. (6.13) of 2019.
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Operating performance Review
Summary of Profit and Loss Account

(Figures in million Taka)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 2019 % of increase/ (decrease)
Revenue from loans, advances and leases 1,170.96 1,611.62 (27.34)
Revenue from Capital Market activities 32.44 (76.92) 142.17
Fee based income 122.68 129.98 (5.61)
Other operating income 236.29 55.05 329.26
Total revenue 1,562.37 1,719.72 (9.15)
Financial expenses 1,696.16 2,234.41 (24.09)
Management expenses 282.90 386.21 (26.75)
Provision for doubtful losses & investments 8.94 113.65 (92.13)
Total expenses 1,988.00 2,734.28 (27.29)
Profit before tax (425.63) (1,014.56) (58.05)
Provision for taxation 106.72 42.83 149.20
Net profit after tax (532.37) (1,057.39) (49.65)

Revenue from loans, advances and leases

The following table shows the income generated from loans, advances and leases:

For the year ended 31 December

(Figures in million Taka)

Income from lease finance 164.08 14.01 165.05 10.24
Income from term finance 398.78 34.06 613.22 38.05
Income from SME finance 38.92 3.32 88.07 5.46
Income from margin loan 54415 46.47 620.37 38.49
Interest on bank deposits 24.24 2.07 123.63 7.67
Income from others 0.79 0.07 1.29 0.08
Total 1,170.96 100.00 1,611.62 100.00

A substantial portion of Company’s revenue is earned from financing activities like lease finance, term finance, SME finance
and margin loan. Earnings from loans, advances and leases represent 75 percent of total revenue earned by the Company

during 2020 (2019: 94 percent).

Total Operating Expenses

(Figures in million Taka)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 2019 % of increase/ (decrease)
Financial expenses 1,696.16 2,234.41 (24.09)
Management expenses 282.90 386.21 (26.75)
Provision for doubtful losses 8.94 113.65 (92.13)

Total expenses

Financial expenses

In 2020 financial expenses have been decreased by
24.09 percent due to change of interest rates and
reduced amount of borrowings & Deposits. UCL pays
interest on funds mobilized from different sources like
deposits from individuals and institutions, loan from
banks/Fls, callloan and security deposits from customers.
Interest rates vary depending on the nature and tenure
of sources of funds. Interest expenses consist of 85.32
percent of fotal expenses (2019: 81.72 percent). In 2020
financial expenses was 108.56 percent of total revenue
(2019: 129.93 percent).
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1,988.00 2,734.28 (27.29)

Management expenses

Management expenses include salaries and allowances,
office rent, promotional expenses, office maintenance
expenses, depreciafion on fixed assets, legal and
professional fee etc. Details of the expenses is given in the
Notes to the Financial Statements of this Annual Report.
Management expenses decreased by 26.75 percent to
Tk. 282.90 million in 2020 (2019: Tk. 386.21 million). During
2020, management expense was 18.11 percent of total
revenue as against 22.46 percentin 2019.



Provision for doubtful losses
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Provision for doubftful losses has been made as per guidelines of Bangladesh Bank and Bangladesh Securities and Exchange
Commission. During the year total provision of Tk. 8.94 million has been provided compared to Tk. 113.65 million in 2019.

Financial Condition Review

(Figures in million Taka except percentage)

Assets and Investments 2020 2019 % of increase/ (decrease)
Loans, advances and leases 13,292.41 13,983.69 (4.94)
Investment in securities 1,000.87 949.20 5.44
Fixed assefts 467.81 457.78 2.19
Cash & cash equivalent 1,204.03 1,624.25 (25.87)
Other assets 1,132.45 1,195.57 (5.28)
Total assets and investments 17,097.57 18,210.49 (6.11)

Shareholders’ equity and liabilities

2019 % of increase/ (decrease)

Total shareholders’ equity & liabilities

Shareholders’ equity 711.57 1,243.94 (42.80)
Deposits 8,797.44 9,914.10 (11.26)
Borrowings from banks and NBFls 3,789.96 4,133.72 (8.32)
Provisions and others liabilities 3.798.60 2,918.74 30.15

17,097.57 18,210.49

Loans, advances and leases

Total outstanding balance of loans, advances and leases as at 31 December 2020 was Tk. 13,292.41 million against Tk.

13,983.69 million in 2019.

Outstanding balance of loans, advances and leases as on 31 December 2020 and 2019 was as under:

(Figures in million Taka except percentage)

. 2020 2019
Particulars
Amount Amount

Lease finance 1,489.87 11.21 1,489.82 10.65
Term finance 5,514.97 41.49 6,007 .41 4296
Home Loan 0.96 0.01 0.96 0.01
Margin loan 6,260.76 47.10 6,449.15 46.12
Other finance 25.85 0.19 36.35 0.26

13,292.41 100.00 13,983.69

In 2020, our total loans, advances and leases decreased
by 4.94 percent compared to 2019 mainly due to
decrease in term finance. Management has always
been f1rying to concentrate on adding quality
investments in its portfolio rather than achieving high
target of business volume, keeping in mind our previous
experiences in our financing activities.

Liquidity Statement

Maturity of assets and liabilities has been determined as
per agreements with our customers and fund providers.
Management always maintains long-term  and
short-term strategy to address the probable liquidity gap
properly.

The Company meets its funding requirements through its
prudent assefs and liability management. Liability
structuring is made in such a way so that it matches with
the tenure of asset structure. Liquidity is monitored
continuously to ensure the company's ability to support

investment  growth, deposit encashment, meet
confractual obligations, maintain reserve requirements
and otherwise sustain  operations. Union Capital
maintains its liquidity in the form of readily encashable
deposits with banks/Fls, collection of rentals/installments
and investment in listed securities.

On the other hand, in order to meet company's urgent
requirement UCL can, on the basis of ifs net assets,
borrow significant amount in the form of call money,
which is another point of liquidity support as far as fund
management is concerned. A statement of liquidity
profile is sent to Bangladesh Bank on monthly basis.
Management, however, believes that the company's
present position is adequate to meet its current and
future liquidity requirements. Maturity analysis indicates
that the company maintains reasonable maturity gap
between assets & liabilities in case of one year maturity
buckets and above one year maturity buckets. Given
below is the maturity table of investment activities:
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Loans, deposits & investments:

(Figure in million Taka)

Particulars l:ﬁotﬁg 1-3 month 3-12 month 1-5years Above 5 years Total
Balance with banks and 307.82 400.00 260.44 - - 968.26
other financial institutions

Investments in shares 8.00 17.30 16.74 - - 42.04
Loans, advances and leases 133.00 273.90 2,956.10 8,305.22 135.09 11,803.30

448.82

691.20

3,233.28

8,305.22

135.09

12,813.61

Maturity table of borrowings and other liabilities are given below:

Upto1

(Figure in million Taka)

Particulars LI 1-3 month 3-12 month 1-5 years Above 5 years Total
Borrowings from banks and 302.61 545.27 1,156.05 1,421.38 - 3,425.30
financial institutions

Term Deposits 128.19 142.79 1,964.72 6,383.66 2.35 8,621.71
Other Deposits 2.61 16.41 26.55 130.11 0.05 175.72

Investment in shares

704.47

3,147.31

7,935.15

12,222.74

Union Capital Limited invested in diversified listed securities with highest investment in manufacturing and other companies
representing 100 percent of total investment. The market value of the securities at 31 December 2020 was Tk. 42.04 million. The
following table shows the concentration of investment in major sectors of listed securities as at 31 December 2020 and 2019:

Particulars

(Figure in million Taka except percentage)

2020

Amount

2019

Amount

Bank companies

Insurance companies

Fuel and power

Manufacturing companies and others

Total

Performance of Capital Market

100.00
100.00

26.67
26.67

100.00
100.00

In 2020, DSE Broad Index DSEX increased 21.31%. Over 2020, the DSEX increased 948.77 points, closed at 5,402.06. DSEX
reached its highest at 5,402.06 on 30 December 2020. In comparison to other developed capital markets, our velocity ratio
is lower, showing that the DSE has room to grow and has leveraged on the opportunities available as reflected by the
improvements achieved in the last few years.

The DSE 30 Index (DS30) which comprises of the BLUE-Chip stocks clocked at its highest point at 1,963.96 on 30 December
2020 while the lowest level of DS30 was recorded at 1,203.43 on 18 March 2020 and the yearend closing was 1,963.96

NBFI sector also followed the overall market as evidenced by its around 5.11 percent shared in total capitalization. In line
with the overall market and NBFI sector, market price of Union Capital Limited started its journey on January 01, 2020 with the
price of Tk. 6.30 in DSE and closed at Tk. 8.40 on 30 December 2020. The highest price was recorded at Tk. 10.20 on 05
October 2020 and the lowest was Tk. 4.70 on 15 March 2020.

Following table shows the capital market picture of DSE for the last four years:

(Figure in million Taka except percentage)

Particulars 2017 2018 2019 2020 Change % (2019 Vs 2020)
Total Trading Days 248 242 237 208 (12.24)
Total Turnover value (BDT in Billion) 2,169.60 1,333.64 1,138.40 1,349.81 1.21
Daily Average Tumover value (BDT million) 8,748.38 5,510.90 4,803.39 6,489.48 17.76
Market Capitalization (BDT in Billion) 4,218.75 3.869.70 3,394.08 3,336.76 (1.69)
Total Number of Listed Securities 569 578 587 596 3.29
Total Newly Listed Securities 9 9 9 9 -
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Non-performing loans, advances & leases (NPL)

Loans, advances & leases are classified as non-performing
when it is marked as substandard category or worse even if
there exists no reasonable doubt as to collectivity. Bangladesh
Bank’s guidelines are strictly followed for determining the
classification of loans, advances and leases. Interest accrued
against overdue renfal/installments of classified loans,
advances and leases are not taken into profit and loss
account rather kept in inferest suspense account.
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Moreover, interest accrued against overdue rentals of
loans, advances and leases faling under the category
of ‘Special Mention Account (SMA)' account are also
transferred to interest suspense account instead of crediting
the same to profit and loss account as per Bangladesh
Bank’s guidelines.

Non-performing loans/leases of Union Capital Limited as of
31 December 2020 and 2019 were as follows:

(Figure in Million Taka except percentage)

Particulars

Outstanding NPL % Outstanding
Loan/Lease finance 10,930.00 899.76 7.62 11,798.88 1,672.32 13.03
SME finance 847.45 398.29 3.37 1,021.31 505.67 3.94
Other finance 25.85 - - 17.87 - -

11,803.30

1,298.05

12,838.06

2,177.99

Rate of non-performing loans, advances and leases was
11.00 percent in 2020 as against 16.97 percent of 2019.
Adequate provision has been made against the
classiied loan accounts as per Bangladesh Bank
guidelines. UCL's recovery policy is in place and there has
been a rigorous monitoring process to recover the
classified loan/lease including litigation. The Management
has been continuously following up the status of litigation

Particulars Provision Interest

for NPL suspense NPL

and possible outcomes in licison with external and internal
lawyers on order to strengthen recovery.

Coverage/reserve against non-performing loans,
advances and leases

The following table summarizes the allocation of the
provision and interest suspense against loans, advances
and leases of Union Capital Limited as of 31 December
2020 and 2019:

(Figure in million Taka)
2019

% of Provision Interest % of
coverage for NPL suspense Tofal NPL  coverage

Lease finance 89.15 73.09 162.24 397.28

40.84 157.61 97.22 | 254.83 537.98 47.00

Term finance 208.25 97.75 306.00 900.77
297.40 170.84 468.24 1,298.05

33.97 306.59 563.79 870.38 | 1640.01 53.00
36.07 464.20 661.01 1,125.21 2,177.99 51.66

Union Capital Limited has maintained total provision of
Tk. 297.40 million against classified loans, advances and
leases as of 31 December 2020 compared to Tk. 464.20
million of last year. Provision against classified loan has
decreased by 35.93 percent compared to 2019.
Management's periodic evaluation of the adequacy of
the provision is based on the companies past experience,
known and inherent risk in the portfolio, adverse
situations that may affect the clients' ability fo repay and
current economic conditions. Management has also
taken the qualitative aspects while classifying an
account.

We always adhere to the principle of classification as
guided by Bangladesh Bank for making interest suspense
and provisioning against loans, advances and leases.
Interest amount is transferred to interest suspense
account rather than showing as income in the profit &
loss account when installments fall overdue for 3 months
or more, in case of loan/lease with tenure of less or equal
5 years and 6 months or more, in case of loan/lease with
maturity of more than 5 years. Base for provision is made
after deducting inferest suspense and value of eligible
security (considered 50 percent of market value of the

security in case of mortgage of land, building and 50
percent of face value or 50 percent of market value,
whichever is lower, in case of shares and 100 percent
against cash security) from outstanding amount of a
particular loan, advance and lease. Rate of provision for
loans, advances and leases classified as Sub-standard,
Doubtful and Bad & Loss is 20 percent, 50 percent and
100 percent respectively.

Coverage ratio of loans advances and leases decreased.
As at 31 December 2020 coverage was 36.07 percent
compared to 51.66 percent of 2019. We believe that
coverage is safisfactory as the company maintain
adequate provision as per guidelines of Bangladesh Bank.

Management has taken adequate measures to reduce
the rate of classified loans, advances and leases by
regular monitoring, examining, appraising, evaluating
the position/status of the classified clients/customers.
Appropriate legal action has been taken where necessary
against the classified loan accounts where prospect of
recovery from the customer through negofiation and
amicable settlement is uncertain.
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Moreover, formation of internal monitoring and recovery
committee for effective monitoring and follow-up of
problem accounts are the initiatives for improving
recovery situation.

Credit Monitoring Function

A continuous monitoring of loan/leases is one of the most
important tools for ensuring the quality of advances
assets for any lending institution. UCL too has a
well-established system of monthly monitoring of its
loans, advances and leases accounts at various levels to
prevent asset quality slippages and to take timely
corrective steps to improve the quality of its overall
portfolio. At UCL, a separate department, Monitoring &
Recovery for monitoring function at the corporate level,
has been functional. UCL has placed special focus on
sharpening of the credit monitoring process for
improving the asset quality, identifying the areas of
concern and the branches requiring special attention. It
has also worked out strategies to ensure implementation
in a time-bound manner. The primary objectives of UCL's
Monitoring & Recovery Department at the corporate
level are fixed as under:

« |dentification of weakness/potential default/ incipient
sickness in the account at an early stage;

« Initiation of suitable and fimely corrective actions for
preventing impairment in credit quality, whenever
signals are notficed in any account, e.g. decline in credit
rating, delay in servicing of rentals/installments etc;

« Prevention of slippage in the asset classification
through a vigorous follow up;

« |dentification of suitable cases for restructuring/ rescheduling;

* Taking necessary steps/regular follow up, for review of
accounts and compliance of terms and conditions,
thereby improving the quality of UCL's portfolio;

* Regular monitoring progress of classified accounts.

Shareholders’ Equity and Capital
Capital Management

Objective

UCL is committed to a disciplined approach to capital
management that balances the interests and
requirements of shareholders, regulators, depositors and
rating agencies. Our objective is to maintain a strong
capital position in a cost-effective structure that:

* is appropriate subject to our target regulatory capital
ratios and internal assessment of required capital;

s consistent with our targeted credit ratings;
« underpins our business strategies;
e isinline with our growth potentials; and

e builds depositors’ confidence and long-term shareholder
value.

Capital Management Framework

The principal and key elements of UCL's capital
management framework are outlined in our capital
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management policy which includes the results of the
internal capital adequacy assessment process.

This process evaluates capital adequacy, and is used to
establish capital targets and capital strategies that take
info consideration the strategic direction of the
Company. The internal capital adequacy assessment
process and capital plan are developed in conjunction
with UCL's annual business plan, promoting alignment
between our business and risk strategies, regulatory
capital requirements. Stress tesfing framework and
scenario analysis are also used to assess the impact of
various stress conditions on UCL's risk profile and capital
requirements. The framework seeks to ensure that we are
adequately capitalized given the risks we take, and
supports the determination of limits, goals and
performance measures that are used to manage
balance sheet positions, risk levels and capital
requirements. Assessments of actual and forecast
capital adequacy are compared to the capital plan
throughout the year.

UCL wuses regulatory capital to evaluate business
performance and as the basis for strategic and
fransactional decision-making. This approach aims fo
protect our stakeholders from the risks inherent in our
various businesses, while still allowing the flexibility to deploy
resources to the high-return, strategic growth activities of
our operational areas.

Governance

The Board of Directors and the Risk Management
Committee provide ultimate oversight and approval of
capital management, including our capital management
policy and capital plan. We regularly review our capital
position, capital adequacy and key capital management
activities. The Risk Management Committee provides
senior management oversight, and also reviews and
discusses capital policies, issues and action items that
arise in the execution of our strategy.

2020 Regulatory Capital Review

Regulatory capital requirements for UCL are currently
determined on the basis of guidelines of ‘Capital
Adequacy and Market Disciplines (CAMD), commonly
known as Basel Il accord issued by Bangladesh Bank.
UCL's capital adequacy is determined based on risk
weighted assets (RWA) in our portfolio. UCL's total
consolidated RWA were Tk. 19,600.11 milion at 31
December 2020, whereas Tk. 19,762.57 million in 2019.
The table below provides a breakdown of our RWA by
risk type.

Risk-Weighted Assets (Consolidated)

(Figure in million Taka)

As at 31 December 2020 2019

Credit risk 16,984.50 17,801.98
Market risk 1,434.98 1,164.67
Operational risk 1180.62 795.92
Total RWA 19,600.11 19,762.57



Basel Il Regulatory Capital (Consolidated)

(Figure in million Taka)

As at 31 December 2020 2019
Tier 1 Capital 711.57 1,243.94
Tier 2 Capital 292.31 322.52
Total regulatory Capital 1,003.88 1,566.46

The above table details the components of regulatory
capital. Tier 1 capital is primarily comprised of paid up
share capital, reserves and surplus. Our shareholders’
equity and Tier 1 capital were Tk. 711.57 million as at 31
December 2020.

Total capital includes Tier 1 and Tier 2 capital, net of
certain deductions. Tier 2 capital is primarily comprised
of subordinated debt and a portion of the general
provision for credit losses. Total regulatory capital as of 31
December 2020 was Tk. 1,003.88 million.

Our objective is to maintain strong capital ratios that
exceed regulatory requirements. The Equity Ratio, Tier 1
Capital Ratio and Total Capital Ratio are key measures
of capital adequacy.

The Equity Ratio and the Basel ll Tier 1 Capital Ratio, Tier 2
Capital Ratio, Total Capital Ratio and Capital to Assets
multiple are the primary capital measurements. The
ratios are as under:

As at 31 December 2020 2019

Tier 1 Capital Ratio 3.63 6.29
Tier 2 Capital Ratio 1.49 1.63
Total Capital Ratio 5.12 7.93

The Equity Ratio reflects shareholders’ equity divided by
RWA. The Tier 1 Capital Ratio reflects Tier 1 capital
divided by RWA. The Total Capital Ratio reflects total
capital divided by RWA. Total Capital Ratio of Union
Capital Limited was 5.12 percent against the minimum
capital adequacy ratio of 10 percent as per Bangladesh
Bank guidelines. Therefore, the Company has shortfall
capital of 4.88 percent over the minimum rate of
regulatory capital as per Basel Il accord.

Borrowings from banks and financial institutions

Total outstanding loan from banks and other financial
institutions as at 31 December 2020 was Tk. 3,789.96
million compared to Tk. Tk. 4,133.72 million in 2019.
Interest on bank loans is paid on monthly/quarterly basis
as per terms of loan arrangements. During the year 2020
Tk. 34.99 million was repaid against loan from banks and
financial institutions.

Union Capital has been enjoying credit facility from
Bangladesh Bank for SME financing, women entrepreneur
finance and received JICA fund under the refinancing
scheme.

Treasury Operation

In order to minimize the asset-liability mismatch, UCL
always strives for mobilizihg funds for longer term
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perspective. In the current money market scenario it is
difficult to mobilize deposit and new banks facilities were
almost stopped in 2020. During the year 2020, an amount
of Tk. 347.58 million has been received/renewed as term
deposits from various sources which was Tk. 3,899.36 million
in 2019. As at 31 December 2020, total outstanding amount
of term deposit was Tk. 8,621.71 milion compared to Tk.
9,699.97 million in 2019. Interest on deposits and borrowings
amounting to TK. 1,156.64 million was paid during the
year 2020 as against Tk. 1,658.47 million in 2019. The
Company offers different deposit products which is
available on page 16.

Cash Flows analysis

Union capital prepares its cash flow statement in line with
the format prescribed by Bangladesh Bank. We manage
our cash flow preparing statement for different maturity
period i.e. within 7 days, 2 weeks, 1-12 months, between
1-3 years, 3-5 years, 5-10 years, 10-15 years, 15-20 years
as per the situation demands.

A considerable portfion of our total assets representing 29
percent is liquid in nature and consists mainly of cash
and balance with various banks and financial institutions
and investment in listed securifies. The highly liquid
nature of our assets provides us with flexibility in financing
and managing our anticipated operating needs. The
company's asset and liability management policy is
infended to manage Balance Sheet Risk, especially for
managing of liquidity risk and interest rate risk. We
manage the risk re-pricing the interest earning assefs
and interest-bearing liabilities though in some cases it is
difficult to re-price the loans, advances and leases. The
Company is always maintaining the CRR and SLR as
prescribed by Bangladesh Bank.

Cash flow from operating activities

Union Capital maintained a negative net cash flow from
its operating activities during the year 2020. Net cash
outflows from operating activities was Tk. 111.95 million
due to a significant amount of payment to depositors.

Cash flow from investing activities

Net cash used in investing activities were Tk. 67.47 million
mainly due to purchase of securities. During the year, a
total amount of Tk. 682.34 million (2019:Tk. 649.48 million)
has been invested for purchase of listed securities while
total sale of securities was Tk. 640.65 million (2019:Tk.
1,015.54 million).

Cash flow from financing activities

Net cash used in financing activities shows a net cash
outflow that means the money borrowed from banks
and financial institutions was less than the money repaid
to banks and financial institutions. During the year a total
amount Tk. 240.81 million was repaid to banks and
financial institutions while no fresh loans from banks and
financial institutions was injected.
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Specific Risk and its Management
Compliance risk

Regulatory risk

This is the risk whereby the procedures implemented by
UCL to ensure compliance to relevant statutory, regulatory
and supervisory requirements are not adhered to and/or
are insufficient and ineffective.

Impact on business

Non-compliance with regulatory risk could result in
significant financial loss, impairment of shareholders’
funds and/ or outright closure of business occasioned by
sanction/fine on UCL, or loss/ suspension of banking
license by the regulatory bodies.

Mitigation measures

Proactive implementation of UCL's sound compliance
programme that ensures compliance by all stakeholders
with relevant laws and regulations. This includes
continuous update of UCL's policy guidelines as well as
fraining of employees to understand regulatory
obligations and the consequence of non-compliance.

Credit risk

Default risk, performance risk, payment risk, diversion risk,
managerial risk.

Impact on business

e Poor asset quality arising from high level of non-
performing loan/leases and ultimately low yield on
earning assets;

* Financial loss due fo increased provisions and charges
on impaired assets;

e Could lead to impairment of shareholders’ funds.
Mitigation measures

« Strong credit analysis to identify the risk;

« Clearloan covenants and transaction dynamics;

« Effective credit contfrol and monitoring processes;

o Prompt identification of early sign of deterioration;

o« Adequacy and realizability of collateral;

» Adoption of risk-based pricing for earning assets; and

» Risk management systems and processes have been
stfrengthened fo optimize portfolio quality and to
ensure appropriate pricing of risk assets.

Portfolio Concentration risk

Impact on business

Breaches of portfolio limits and regulatory provisions
could lead to sanctions and increased financial loss.

Mitigation measures

Adherence to portfolio limits as has been set by the
Sectoral Investment Policy approved by the Board and
regulatory requirements.
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Responsibility
Business Units, Chief Risk Officer and Credit Risk Management
Department.

Market and liquidity risk
Interest rate risk

Impact on business

Could result in significant financial loss, impairment of
interest rate related instruments including fixed-rate
instfruments.

Mitigation measures

o Experienced Asset-liability Management Committee
that meets regularly;

* Daily reporting fo executive management; and

o Strict adherence to UCL's internal policies such as the
use of limits and management action triggers.

Investment risk

Impact on business

Could lead to diminution in the value of investments.

Mitigation measures

¢ Significant investments are approved by the Board
and all others by the Board Executive Committee and
the Credit Committee;

¢ Experienced executives in the respective business units;

e Supervision by the parent company’s Directors
nominated to act as Directors of the subsidiaries; and

* Portfolio selection and diversification strategies.

Liquidity risk
Impact on business

Could lead to insolvency and eventual reputational risk.

Mitigation measures

e Efficient Asset and Liability Committee that oversees
« liquidity management;

« Diversified sources of funding;
« Confingent funding plan; and
¢ Effective cash flow planning.
Responsibility

The primary responsibility for mitigating the above risks
lies with the treasury department. However, the risk
identification, measurement, monitoring, confrol and
reporting lies with the ALCO and the Chief Risk Officer.

Operational risk

People risk

The risk of loss — financial, reputational or otherwise —
arising from a failure fo properly manage UCL's human
capital. This could manifest in the form of staff fraud, high
staff attrition, knowledge gaps and a demotivated and
disgruntled workforce.



Impact on business

This would impact UCL by way of negative service
experiences for our customers and the attendant loss in
market share, financial loss and reputational damage
and the cumulative effect of being unable to deliver
strong business performance that meetfs or exceeds
stakeholders’ expectations.

Mitigation measures

e UCL has put in place comprehensive service rules to
achieve a strong workplace;

» Effective background checks on new hires;

¢ Competitive remuneration package to attract and
retain the best talent;

* Enforcement of strong supervisory control;
« Zero tolerance to staff integrity issues and fraud;

« Afully fledged HR Department to cater for the training
and development needs of staff;

¢« A HR and Compensation Committee that deal with
and resolve employee issues; and

» Implementation of National Integrity Strategy as a part

of uplifting the morale, ethics, integrity of the employees.

System or technology risk

The risk of failing to develop, implement or operate UCL's
technology platforms and solutions to meet stakeholders
requirements.

Impact on business

This could manifest in the form of: system downtime
resulfing in irate customers and tarnished reputation;
software failures; systems change process management
failures; seizure of technical support; hardware failures;
obsolete hardware; and no support from the system
providers.

Mitigation measures

« UCL has a Disaster Recovery Plan;

« UCL execute Service Agreement with IT service providers;
« Regular IT supervision and control;

« Hardware management covering hardware purchase,
use, replacement and disposal;

« Extensive software selection process is in place covering

purchase or design, use, enhancement and replacement;

« Building resilience into UCL's network platform through
the installation of a back-up link.

Information security risk

Confidentiality, integrity and availability of UCL operations
and information assets.

Impact on business

Information assets are critical to UCL's operation and the
confidentiality, integrity and availability of these assets
are crucial to the effective and efficient delivery of
service by UCL to its customers.

Disruption or interruptions to these assets would have dire
consequences on UCL operations.
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Mitigation measures

« Documenting and standardizing the processes within UCL
while building appropriate controls info these processes;

e Classifying all information assets with appropriate priorities
and assigning ownership for those assets; and

e Developing awareness programme and making information
security the responsibility of all UCL staff.

Responsibility

The primary responsibility for security of UCL information
assets and applicable legislations lies with all employees,
while the Executive Management has the overall
responsibility fo ensure that all information assets within
UCL are protected and thus adequately secure.

Legal risk

Impact on business

Increased costs, loss of revenue, abuse and/or loss of
intellectual property, distraction, negative brand equity,
strained  relationships  with  customers, depositors,
employees, service providers, investors, regulators and
other stakeholders, and possible disruption of business
activities.

Mitigation measures

Consistent  application  of professional standards,
fransparency and fairness while transacting to reduce
areas of possible conflicts, availability of a dependable
record retenfion system, engagement of external
counsel with proven competence in the prosecution of
UCL's claims against third parties and in the conduct of
UCL's defense, and exploring alternative dispute
resolution mechanisms, among others.

Regulations

UCL has been operating under the license from
Bangladesh Bank. Our operations are subject fo
regulation, inspection, and supervision. This supervision
and regulation is intended primarily to bring financial
discipline in the functioning of NBFIs and for the
protection of the depositors. We are required to provide
reports to our regulators on our activities on certain
intervals; some are regularly, some are weekly, monthly,
quarterly, half-yearly, yearly and so on. Regulations
applicable to UCL generally relate to lending and
investment activities, maintenance of appropriate level
of capital, maintenance of cash and liquidity reserve,
appointment of Directors, Managing Director and
auditors, loan to Directors and associates etc. Failure to
comply with these regulations may be considered as an
unsafe and unsound practice and may result in the
imposition of penalties by Bangladesh Bank. The
company is required to submit periodic reports/
statements to Bangladesh Bank describing its activities
and financial conditions. Our capital market operations
are also monitored and supervised by BSEC and Stock
Exchanges. The periodic reports are required to submit
to Bangladesh Bank, BSEC and Stock Exchanges are
given below:
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Schedule of Bangladesh Bank Reporting

Reporting to BSEC

Reporting Type Frequency Shareholding posifion Quarterly
Statement of shareholding information Quarterly Quarterly financial statements Quarterly
Statement of lease/loan rescheduling Monthly Half-yearly report Half-yearly
Statement of lease/loan write off Quarterly Annual R(?port — Annually
Changes in the position of BOD/MD/CS/CFO | When occurred
CIB refurn Monthly
Statement of business activities QUOrTerly Dhaka & Chiﬂ-qgong Stock Exchange
Statement of industrial loan Quarterly
Stat n I Seri o Shareholding position Monthly
atement on money laundenng Quarterly Statement of free float shareholding Monthly
Statement of loans/leases of bank/Fis directors Quarterly Quarterly financial statements Quarterly
Statement of top 10 defaulters Quarterly Half-yearly report Half-yearly
Statement of litigation cases Half-yearly Annual report Annually
Statement of |Orge |Oon/|eose Quorfeﬂy ChGngeS in the posiﬁon of BOD/MD/CS/CFO When occurred
Risk management paper Monthly 3 .
- - - Recent legislations
Report on national integrity strategy Quarterly
Call money transactions Daily D.urmg the .yeo.r 2020,.Bor.wglode.sh.Bonk has issued certain
- circulars/guidelines which inter alia include as under:
Report on product and services Yearly
Report on green banking Quarterly . BorTgIct.desh Bank instructed fino'nci.cﬂ institutions  to
NBDC refumn Monthly mqn’rom CRR @ 1.5% of .'rerm deposits instead of 2.5% by
— issuing a new circular during 2020.
Schedule of fees/charges/commission Half-yearly ) ] )
Infer-bank fransaction matrix Monthly e A new C|rculor was issued by Bangladesh Bank regarding
stat of ; al - ey | restructuring of loan/leases where loan tenure would be
atement of corporate socialresponsiofity aryearly extended up to 50% of remaining fime to maturity.
Classification of leases & loans (FICL) Quarterly . o )
— e Revised guidelines for Stress Testing Report had been
Sector wise investment Quarterly . . .

. E— issued for NBFIs where existing colored positioning zone
Capital adequacy & market disciplines (BASEL Il) Quarterly had been abolished and new positioning zone had been
Stress testing Report Quarterly replaced by alphabet (i.e. A, B & C).

Minutes of board/committee meefings 5 working days « Bangladesh Bank issued different circulars regarding
Statement of cash reserve requirement Monthly classification of loan/leases during 2020 for overcoming
Statement of statutory liquidity reserve Monthly the negative impact of COVID-19 pandemic.
Statement of lending/deposit rate Quarterly Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission has also
Liquidity profile Monthly issued guidelines for listed companies, which inter alia
Audited financial statements & Annually include as under:
management report e BSEC issued directives with regard to redefining of
Statement of SME loan/lease disbursement Quarterly “Z-category companies”, clearing day for securities, fund
Statement of SME loan/lease disbursement Quarterly of Z-category companies and placement & adjustment of
for women enfrepreneur Z-category companies.
Statement of SME loan/lease outstanding Quarterly » BSEC issued directives regarding imposing further
Statement of SME loan/lease recovery/ Quarterly conditions/directions for issuance of capital in Bangladesh
. or public offer for securities for sale and the Central
collection status . .
Depository Bangladesh Limited (CDBL).
Statement of SME loan/lease cluster Quarterly
. . » BSEC issued directives with regard fo extend maximum limit
wise disbursement . . .
of credit facilities to approved clients by the TREC holders
Statement of SME loan/lease cluster Quarterly
of the stock exchanges.
wise outstanding
Statement of SME monitoring refinance Quarterly Competition
scheme for women entrepreneur UCL faces intense competition in all the markets where it
Statement of SME farget report Yearly .opgrofes. Its principal compeh‘rors are the non—bgnk financial
- — institutions. Because of involvement of banks in our core
Report on integrated supervision system Monthly . . . - . .
I : product i.e. leasing business, competitiveness in leasing has
Statement of assef & liability and profit & loss ~ Quarterly been intensified further. Some banks are also offering capital
Report on Large Loans Quarterly market related products like brokerage services, portfolio
Cash Transaction Report (CTR) Monthly management etc.
Suspicious Transaction Report (STR) Monthly
- ; - COMMUNICATION WITH THE SHAREHOLDERS
Diagnostic Review Report (DRR) Yearly
Statement of NBFII & NBF-II Quarterly The investor relation activities of the Company are designed to
provide a balanced level of communication between the
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Company and its stakeholders. Established procedures are
in place to ensure the fimely release of price sensitive
information. The Company also publishes its quarterly,
half-yearly and annual results well within the time periods
prescribed by the regulators.

The Company promotes the use of Company's website
in all Company announcements. The welbsite also
contains corporate information which is updated on a
regular basis and includes a corporate governance
information which contains details of the Company's
adherence to the guidelines and the full terms of
reference of the Board and its Committees. All the
Directors normally aftend the Annual General Meeting
and shareholders are invited to ask questions during the
meeting and to meet with Directors after the formal
proceedings have been concluded. The twenty third
Annual General Meeting will be held on 28 July 2021. All
shareholders of the Company are invited to attend the
Company's Annual General Meeting. An invitation letter
has been given to the shareholders available on page
269 of this Annual Report.

The Directors appreciate the importance of general
shareholders of the Company and use the Company’s
Annual General Meeting as further opportunities fo
communicate with them. UCL provides copies of its annual
report in order that these are made available to them well
in advance for detail and constructive discussion. It is the
company's policy fo give the shareholders the opportunity
at Annual General Meeting to ask questions about its
activities and prospects. The Board also structures these
meetings so that shareholders can vote separately on
each matter, by proposing separate resolutions for each
item to be considered.

In accordance with the provisions of the Companies
Act, 1994 the notice of the twenty third Annual General
Meeting was sent to shareholders more than 21 clear
days before the meeting. Notice of AGM is also

///l Annual Report 2020

published in two widely circulated daily newspapers,
one in English and the other in Bangla. Shareholders
have the opportunity to vote separately on each
proposal at the Annual General Meeting, either in
person or by proxy. The proxy form is aftached to the
annual report to represent the original shareholder in the
meeting and vote on his/her/their behalf in case of
preoccupation or otherwise.

As in previous years, the Chairman of the Company will
be available to answer questions from shareholders at
the Annual General Meeting.

The Company maintains a corporate website
www.unicap-bd.com containing a wide range of
information of the Company.

Human Resources

Our human capital strategy focuses on attracting and
retaining the key skills needed to achieve organizational
objectives, improving individual capabilities, placing the
right people in development programmes, increasing
the focus on achieving organizational goals through
performance management, identifying a pipeline of
leaders needed by the organization now and in the
future, improving change capability, fostering sound
employee relations, and organizational transformation,
improving employee engagement, promoting the
wellbeing of our employees, and ensuring competitive
rewards for employees.

In line with our objective of increasing ownership
concept among employees, we introduced among
others employee provident fund, gratuity, performance
bonus, home loan facility, transport facility and so on.
The total human resource strength of UCL Group as on 31
December 2020 was 174. Management considers that
the relation amongst its employees is satisfactory. The list
of senior executives of UCL is given below:

Name Age With UCL Present Position
Chowdhury Manzoor Liaquat 54 February-18 Managing Director & CEO
Tauhidul Ashraf FCS 43 August-13 EVP & Company Secretary
A. N. M. Golam Shabbir 50 December-98 | Executive Vice President
Fazle Karim Murad 47 June-00 Senior Vice President
Muhammad Salah Uddin 41 August-16 Senior Vice President
Khandaker Muhammad Forhad Abedin 42 August-16 Vice President

Mahbub Alam 43 October-16 Vice President
Mohammad Balayet Hossain 39 May-10 Vice President

Fahim Ahasan Choudhury 34 March-18 Assistant Vice President
Deenesh Kumar Raha 38 December-13 | Assistant Vice President
Asif Raihan Chowdhury 35 January-14 Assistant Vice President
Mohammed Zakir Hossain 42 November-02 | Senior Manager

Sk. Md. Rezwanul Haque 36 Aug-13 Senior Manager

A. B. M. Qamrul Hasan 42 May-17 Senior Manager

Md. Zahidul Islam 36 August-19 Senior Manager
Mohammad Salah Uddin Pallab 39 October-16 Senior Manager
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Name Age With UCL Present Position
Mohammad Jahangir Alam Khan 43 February-11 Manager
Md. Abdul Bashed 44 March-11 Manager
S. M. Mehedi Hasan 33 February-10 Manager
Md. Abdul Hannan 38 April-18 Manager
Sadia Shaherat Jahan 34 March-17 Manager

Operational Hub

The head office of UCL is located at bfi Landmark
(Level-8), plot-16, Gulshan Avenue, Gulshan-1, Dhaka
-1212. We provide financial services from our é offices
located in Dhaka, Chittagong, Sylhet, Gazipur and
Bogra. We conduct our merchant banking operations
and securities trading activities through our subsidiary
companies.

Annual Report and other important documents
available in website

This Annual Report, prepared and presented on the basis
of disclosure requirements by the regulatory authorities is
made available on our website at www.unicap-bd.com
as soon as reasonably practicable after furnishing the
same fo Bangladesh Bank, Bangladesh Securities and
Exchange Commission (BSEC), Stock Exchanges where
the shares of the Company are traded.

Market for UCL’s ordinary shares

The ordinary shares of UCL are traded on the Dhaka
Stock Exchange Ltd. and Chittagong Stock Exchange
Ltd. under the symbol of ‘UNIONCAP'. The following
table indicates the high and low prices for the shares of
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Union Capital, as reported by DSE during each quarter
end of 2020:

Fig. in Taka
Quarter High Low
Q1_20 6.40 4.70
Q2_20 4.80 4.80
Q3_20 8.10 4.80
Q4_20 10.20 5.60

UCL’s market share in industry

Across our business group, UCL offers a complete range
of financial services to help our customers achieve their
goals. We provide strategic advice, lend money, raise
capital, and help manage funds and extend supports
and hold leadership position in all of our major business
areas. UCL believes in product innovativeness. As a part
of it, UCL always delivers tailor-made financial products
to meet appropriate and diverse needs of our customers
and innovates new financial products for existing and
future customers.

Last couple of years Union Capital Limited has been
taking a significant position in the industry in terms of
market share, profitability and many other parameters.



FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

(BDT in million except ratios and per share data)

OPERATING PERFORMANCE
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PARTICULARS 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
Operating revenue 1,562.36 1,719.72 2,488.90 2,456.63 2,288.81
Operating profit (133.80) (514.69) 728.46 827.93 943.02
Profit before tax (425.64) (1,014.56) 184.99 280.89 440.40
Net profit after tax (532.37) (1,057.39) 92.39 177.90 205.40
Earnings per share (EPS) (3.08) (6.13) 0.56 1.14 1.44
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Current assets 4,913.30 6,588.21 8,455.59 9.110.88 6,697.30
Total assets 17,097.57 18,210.49 21,708.43 24,679.85 21,765.54
Property, plant and equipment 467 .81 457.78 40.22 51.17 35.78
Net current assefts 24.00 200.97 345.97 858.83 538.19
Long term liabilities 9,405.02 10,451.87 11,047.79 13,232.05 12,405.34
Current liabilities 4,889.29 6,387.24 8,109.62 8,252.05 6,159.11
Total liabilities 16,386.00 16,966.55 19,407.10 22,470.92 19,734.51
Shareholders' fund 711.57 1,243.94 2,301.32 2,208.93 2,031.03
Capital employed 12,208.28 11,823.25 13,598.80 16,427.80 15,606.43
PROFITABILITY AND OTHER FINANCIAL RATIOS

Gross operatfing margin ratio (%) (11.43) (31.94) 34.36 43.06 48.53
Earning before interest, depreciation and tax 1,316.11 1,239.74 1,967.14 1,926.59 1,798.54
Price earnings raftio (Times) (2.72) (1.03) 22.06 17.69 14.20
Current rafio (Times) 1.00 1.03 1.04 1.10 1.09
Return on capital employed (%) (54.45) (59.65) 4.10 8.39 10.21
Debt/Equity (Times) 2.37 1.21 1.05 1.44 1.14
Financial expense coverage (Times) 0.92 0.77 1.41 1.51 1.70
Net profit margin (%) (34.07) (61.49) 3.71 7.24 8.97
Rate of dividend (%) - - 5.00 5.00 10.00
Operating expense to operating revenue (%) (34.07) (61.49) 3.71 7.24 8.97
BUSINESS RATIOS

Statutory liquidity reserve ratio (%) 12.87 26.45 42.20 29.17 13.39
Cash reserve ratio (%) 1.60 3.63 2.62 3.07 2.55
Net interest income as a % of working funds (3.95) (4.45) 2.32 1.65 3.49
Cost/Income ratio (%) (211.43) (75.04) 54.05 45.52 26.36
Return on average assets (%) (3.02) (5.30) 0.40 0.77 0.98
Net asset value per share 4.12 7.21 14.00 14.11 14.27
Profit per employee (3.02) (4.60) 0.34 0.71 1.03
Capital adequacy ratio (%) 5.12 7.93 12.53 11.34 11.83
Operating profit as a percentage of working funds (1.01) (3.68) 4.70 4.64 5,51
Dividend cover ratio (Times) (3.08) (6.13) 0.56 1.14 1.44
Non-Performing Loans to Total Loans (%) 11.00 16.97 9.68 8.73 8.44
EQUITY STATISTICS

Authorized capital 2,000.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 2,000.00
Paid up share capital 1,725.74 1,725.74 1,643.56 1,565.30 1,423.00
Number of shares 172.57 172.57 164.36 156.53 142.30
Shareholders' equity 711.57 1,243.94 2,301.32 2,208.93 2,031.03
Year end market price 8.40 6.30 12.40 20.10 20.50
Market capitalization 1,449.62 1,087.22 2,038.01 3,146.24 2,917.14
Market value addition 738.05 (156.72) (263.31) 937.31 886.11
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Graphical data of
BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

Shareholder Fund
Shareholders' fund has been
decreased by 42.77 percent
due to maintain provision
against receivable from
UniCap Investments Ltd. (UIL)
and suspending income of UIL
from previous year

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

Investments

In 2020, investment was Tk. 14,293
million as against Tk. 14,933
million of 2019 registering a
nagative growth of 4.29 percent
due to lack of fresh investment in
2020 as well as significant
number of early settlement of
loans/leases clients.

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

Operating Revenue

In 2020 operating revenue has
been decreased by 9.19 percent
o Tk. 1,562 million from Tk. 1,720
million of 2019. This is the result of
suspention of income from UIL in
the year 2020.

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

2,489 @

38 | Union Capital Limited

2020

2020

2019

2019

2018

2018

2018

14,668 @

2017

2017
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2017

2016

2016

2016

Deposits

Amount of deposit is Tk. 8,797
million in 2020 comapared to
Tk. 9,914 milion in 2019
registering negative growth of
11.27% due to settlement of
institutional and individual
deposits as well as slowdown
of deposit mobilization during
2020.

NPL

UCL maintained the NPL rate at
11.00 percent which was
significantly reduced from 2019
due to issuance of circular by BB
on classification of loan/lease
during Covid period and also for
setflement of few classified
accounts.

Operating Profit

In 2020, operating income
has been significantly
increased by more than 74
percent to Tk. (134) milion
from Tk. (515) milion of 2019
due to deploying recovery
effort specially for write off
clients of UCL.
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Interest income

In 2020, interestincome
decreased by 27.36 percent to
Tk. 1,171 milion from 1,612 miilion
of 2019 due to decreasing loans,
leases portfolio and suspending
interestincome from UIL in 2020.

Net profit/(loss)

In 2020, net loss has been
reduced negative 532 million
from (1,057) million in 2019 due
to deploying recovery effort
specially for write off clients of
UCL and decreased operating
expenses.

Earnings per
share

EPS has been increased by
more than 49 percent due
to deploying recovery
effort specially for write off
clients of UCL and
decreased operating
expenses in 2020.

2020

2020

@ (54.45)

2020

2019

2019

2018

4.10
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2018

2018

2017

8.39

]

2017

2017
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2016

10.21

2016

2016

Cost of fund

Cost of fund has
been decreased by
7.73 percent mainly
for over all money
market rate move to
downward trend.

Return on
shareholder fund

Our return on equity has
been increased by 8.72
percent due to deploying
recovery effort specially
for write off clients of UCL
and decreased operating
expenses in 2020.

Net assets growth

Net assets has been
decreased by 42.77
percent due fo eamning
profit decreased by

Tk. 532.37 million in
current year.
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Capital adequacy

ratio Operating profit
per employee

Capital adequacy ratio has '

decreased to 5.12 percent in Operating profit (loss) per

2020 from 7.93 percent of employee has decreased

2019 as against regulatory more than 66.07 percent

requirement of 10 percent. co-mpored To last Yegr due

This is the result of decrease .fo |ncre<?se in operating

in regulatory capital. o1 a1 income in 2020.

202 2019 2018 2017 2016 2018

(0.76) @

Agriculture 1.46%

Garments and Knitwear 4.51%

Telecommunication
and IT9.89%

Textile 14.53%

Trade and
Commerce 8.68%

Transport and
Aviation 4.07%

Others 22.95%

Housing 16.17%

\___ Food Production and
Processing Industry 9.62%

Electronics and
Electrical 3.47%

Plastic Industry 4.66%

Sector wise classification - 2020
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2020 SOCIAL INDICATOR

Staffing level 2020 2019
Management Cadre 39 51
Non Management Cadre 40 60
Support Staff 18 25
Total Work force 97 136
Male 89 121
Female 08 15
Average age of employees
Management Cadre 21.01 22.73
Non Management Cadre 42.99 39.64
Support Staff 27.03 25.89
Change in Staffing level
Total employee at beginning 136 156
Recruitment during this year 03 21
Departures (retirement/resignation) 42 41
Changes during the year 97 136
Trainning
Average number of days in training 0.13 0.38
per employee
% of employees who participated 84.81 100
in af least one
No. of employees who participated in at 67 112
least one training program during the year
No. of fraining programs participated 11 48
by employees during the year
m SME
Support Staff 18 W Finance & Accounts
m Corporate Finance
Retail 1 m Treasury
Investment 1 m legal
T m IcC
Executive Office 2 Va i';zgiﬁé‘ ¢ W Specid AsefManagement
HR & Admin 5 m CRM
m CAD
ICT 2 Corporate m Board Secretariates
Finance 7 m T
m HR &Admin

Board

Secretariates 2 Treasury 12

4

CAD ¢

Special Asset
Management 7

ICC 3

Department wise employee (in number)

Executive Office
Investment
Retail

Support Staff
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' Management
B Non Management

1 Support Staff

Total work force (in number)

' Management
B Non Management

m Support Staff

Total work force (in number)

B Male

W Female

Gender wise employee (in number)

B Male

W Female

121

Gender wise employee (in number)
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AWARDS & RECOGNITIONS

Union Capital Limited received many awards in last couple of years. Winning such exciting awards has always been
very prestigious. It is a testament to the quality of our report, transparency, compliance, good governance practices
in our operations and adequate, timely & fair disclosure to the stakeholders.

We dedicate these friumphs to our customers, depositors, shareholders, regulators and others stakeholders.
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2021 KEY PRIORITIES

Outlines important actions for achieving strategic goals

At the beginning of the year 2021, the Management of
the Company deliberated and agreed on certain key
priorities for UCL Group. These priorities will serve as the
platform for driving the overall performance for the year
2021. They are:

Strengthening our Value Proposition

Strengthening our value proposition to our target
customer segments including corporate, SME and retail
customers with the objective of improving our share of
businesses of financing operations and becoming an
institution amongst the top performers in key areas.

Consolidating UCL and its Subsidiaries

Reinforcing our business in each of our operating
segments in order to deepen our penetration, achieve
positive contribution to the group’s profitability and
deliver commensurate returns on working fund.

Driving for Low Cost term deposit

Augmenting our market share of low cost deposits by
leveraging our superior reach and personalized to drive
growth building a strong and dedicated team for
deposit mobilization.

Recovery from defaulter clients

Taking all conventional and non-conventional measures
fo recover bad loans/leases from the defaulter clients in
order to reduce the classified loan and hence to
improve the bottom line of the income statements.

Reduce the controllable expenses

Reducing all controllable operational expenses with a
view to avoid unproductive expenses and to improve
financial health of the organization

Process Improvement

Removal of process, organizational and policy
bottlenecks affecting efficiency improvements within
the group.

2021 KEY PRIORITIES

Strengthening
our Value

Consolidating

UCL and its Low Cost

( Proposition ( Subsidiaries ( term deposit

Driving for

Recovery i Reduce the \
Process
from defaulter

. Improvement
clients expenses

controllable

Driving quality earnings across all of our business by focusing on industry leading customer experience and enhancing operating

efficiency we shall strive for achieving our strategic goals.
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Board of Directors

Board Structure and its Operation

Charter of the Board and its Committees

Directors’ Report

Audit Committee Report

Report on Internal Confrol

Directors’ responsibility in respect of the financial statements
Responsibility of CEO and CFO in respect of Financial Reporting
Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Chairman'’s Statement on Corporate Governance

Corporate Governance

Ethical & Compliance Statement

Certificate on compliance of condifions on Corporate Governance

Report on Compliance of BSEC's Notification on Corporate Governance

Compliance Report on Bangladesh Bank's Guidelines on Corporate Governance
Disclosures on Capital Adequacy and Market Discipline (CAMD)

Report on Going Concern

Risk Management

Senior Management

Management Committees

Organization Chart




The Board is responsible for the strategic direction and ultimate control of the Company according
fo its Memorandum & Articles of Association and Board Charter.




CHOWDHURY TANZIM KARIM

Chairman
(Nominated by EC Secuirities Limited)

Mr. Chowdhury Tanzim Karim is a full time practicing
lawyer specialized in company, commercial,
banking and securities law. He is the Head of
Chamber af C. T. Karim & Partners, a Dhaka
based law firm primarily engaged in dealing with
civii matters. He has been providing legal
services to a number of leading banks, financial
institutions, merchant banks and asset
management companies in Bangladesh. Mr.
Karim was called to the Bar of England and
Wales from the Honorable Society of Lincoln's
Inn  upon successful completion of Bar
Vocational Course at Inns of Court, School of
Law. He obtained his L.L.B degree from Cardiff
University, UK and Diploma-in Law from University
of London. Mr. Karim is enrolled as an Advocate
of Supreme Court of Bangladesh and also a
member of Dhaka Bar Association and Supreme
Court Bar Associafion.

First appointment to the Board 25 April 2011
Born in May 1985

Nationality Bangladeshi

Committee Membership Nill

External Appointment

Chairman, UniCap Securities Limited
Chairman, UniCap Investments Limited
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WAQAR A. CHOUDHURY

Director

Mr. Wagar A. Choudhury is the Managing Director
& CEO of Vanguard Asset Management Limited,
an Asset Management Company licensed &
regulated by Bangladesh Securities & Exchange
Commission (BSEC) for managing Mutual Funds,
providing Corporate Advisory services and
Portfolio Management. He obtained Bachelor of
Finance & Banking (Finance Concentration) from
Adelphi University, Long Island, N.Y. USA in 1995.
Then he started his career in the year 1996 as a
Director of Nascom (Pvt.) Ltd. and Sponsor
Shareholder of Green Delta Insurance Company
Limited. He is the member of various Associations
and Clubs including Metropolitan Chamber of
Commerce & Industry (MCCI), American Alumni
Association, Dhaka Club Limited, Gulshan Club
Limited, Kurmitola Golf Club Limited, Uttara Club
Limited, Gulshan Youth Club, Weekend Cricket
Club  Association and Old Laboratories
Association.

First appointment to the Board 21 October 2015
Born in April 1966

Nationality Bangladeshi

Committee Membership

Chairman, Executive Committee

Member, Audit Committee

External Appointment

Managing Director, Vanguard Asset Management Limited
Director, WAC Equity Management Limited
Director, Rancom Trading Private Limited
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NADEEM A. CHAUDHURY

Director
(Nominated by Enrilco Limited)

Mr. Nadeem A. Chaudhury is representing Enrilco
Limited in the Board of Union Capital Limited. Mr.
Chaudhury holds a Bachelor of Professional
Science degree in Construction Management
and Civil Engineering from Pratt Institute, New York,
USA. He is also a Masters in Business Administration.
He has been involved in the Infrastructure
Development business internationally for over 23
years. He is also a highly skilled contract negotiator
with international concerns.

He was a Director of Green Delta Insurance
Company Limited. He also served as the Managing
Director of Navana Pharmaceuticals Ltd, Bengal
Development Corporatfion and as the CEO of
Eastern Housing Ltd, a concern of Islam Group.

First appointment to the Board 22 November 2001
Born in May 1965

Nationality Bangladeshi

Committee Membership

Member, Audit Committee

Member, Executive Committee

External Appointment

Director, Enrilco Limited

Green Delta Securities Ltd.

Green Delta Capital Ltd.
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TAJRINA SIKDER

Director
(Nominated by Palmal Garments Hosiery Limited)

Ms. Tajrina Sikder did her BBA from ABAC University
of Thailand. Subsequently, she involved herself with
Palmal Group as a Director. As a businesswoman,
Ms. Sikder is associated with business activities in
the area of apparels, fashion, accessories and
packaging. She has fravelled various countries for
business purpose. She is also involved in numerous
social and welfare organizations.

First appointment to the Board 9 August 1998
Born in January 1974

Nationality Bangladeshi

Committee Membership Nil

External Appointment

Director, Palmal Garments Hosiery Ltd.; Palmal
Garments Washing Ltd.; Amazon Garments Ltd.;
NKK Knitwear Ltd.; Max Speed Plastic Lid.;
Designer Line (Pvt.) Ltd.; Palmal Knitwear Factory
Ltd.; Palmal Garments Ltd.; UniCap Investments
Limited; UniCap Securities Limited.



DR. SABITA REZWANA RAHMAN

Director

Dr. Sabita Rezwana Rahman, a professor in the
Department of Microbiology of Dhaka University,
did her PhD from United Kingdom and M. Sc. in
Microbiology from Dhaka University. She got
elected for the position of Joint Secretary of Dhaka
University Teachers Association in 2012, Member of
Dhaka University Teachers Association in 2013-16
and Senate Member of Dhaka University in 2013-16.
She got international gold medal on Champions of
the Champions in 2010 for outstanding research
amongst young scientists and also gold medal
awarded by Third World Academy of Sciences in
[taly for outstanding research performance in 2009.
She got infernational award on Commonwealth
Scholarship for PhD degree in the United Kingdom
by Commonwealth Scholarship Commission in
London, Govt. Merit Scholarship in Microbiology
and Dean’s Award in BAS-Third World Academy of
Sciences.

First appointment to the Board 22 May 2006
Born in July 1970

Nationality Bangladeshi

Committee Membership

Member, Audit Committee

Member, Executive Committee

External Appointment

Nil
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MEHERUNNESA HAQUE

Director

Mrs. Meherunnesa Haque was born in 1954. As a
businesswoman, she is involved with business
activities since 1984. Mrs. Haque holds the
position of Director in a good number of business
entities in the arena of garments, garments
accessories and finance. She was a Director of
Prime Bank Ltd. Mrs. Hague has traveled various
countries including US.A., UK., Canada, Germany,
Singapore and Thailand for business purpose. She
enthusiastically takes part and contributes to
various social activities.

First appointment to the Board 26 June 2004
Born in December 1954

Nationality Bangladeshi

Committee Membership Nil

External Appointment

Director, Palmal Garments Hosiery Ltd.; Palmal
Garments Ltd.; Palmal Knitwear Factory Ltd.;
Palmal Garments Washing Ltd.; Palmal Styles
Ltd.; Palmal Packaging Ltd.; Palmal Dresses Ltd.;
N.K.K. Knitwear Ltd.; N.K.K. Sweaters Ltd.; Pragati
Fashionwear Ltd.; Pragati Metalex (Pvt) Lid.;
Al-Homra Garments Ltd.; Amazan Garments
Ltd.; The Dacca Dyeing Garments Ltd.; UniCap
Investments Ltd; UniCap Securities Limited.
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DR. KAZI RUSSEL MAHBUB

Director
(Nominated by Palmal Garments Hosiery Limited)

Dr. Kazi Russel Mahbub graduated from Dhaka Dental
College in 1996. After completion of his fraining in
Dhaka, Dr. Mahbub went on to pursue further training
in Australia, where he also obtained his Masters
Degree from the prestigious University of Wollongong,
New South Wales (NSW) in 2002. Since then he has
attended numerous scientific  sessions and CME
conferences in various countries. Dr. Mahbub setup his
private practice in Gulshan called BIODENT Dental Clinic
in 2003. He is one of the few private practitioners in
Dhaka well known at home and abroad for skills and
quality work. Skilled in Oral Surgical Procedures, Dr.
Mahbub was one of the first few Bangladeshi Dentists
to frain and qualify for the placement of Dental
implants from the BICON Institute of Boston, U.S.A. in
2009. Dr. Mahbub is also the founder and Chairman of
Floral Accessories Limited, a reputed packaging
industry setup in 2010. Dr. Mahbub is an avid golfer,
and is a member of both The Army Golf Club and
Kurmitola Golf Club. In his personal life, Dr. Mahbub is
married and a loving father of one son and two
daughters. He is the son of Engr. K A S Md. Abdur
Rahim, retired as the Chairman of Dhaka Electrical
Supply Authority.

First appointment to the Board 21 May 2012
Born in October 1971

Nationality Bangladeshi

Committee Membership Nil

External Appointment

Chairman, Flora Accessories Ltd.
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MUNSHI SHAFIUL HAQUE

Independent Director

A retired senior Government Officer, Mr. Munshi Shafiul
Haque did his Masters in Economics from Rajshahi
University in 1982. Later he obtained LLB and LLM from
arenowned University.

He started his career as an Assistant Commissioner and
served the Government in various important capacities
before his retirement as the Additional Secretary of the
Government of Peoples Republic of Bangladesh.

Mr. Hagque was the former Councilor Member of the
Institute of Chartered Secretaries of Bangladesh (ICSB)
and the Institute of Cost & Management Accountants
of Bangladesh (ICMAB). He was also the member of
the Scrutiny Committee for approval of Foreign Loan/
Supplier's Credit. He was also the Chairman of
National Tea Company Limited.

Mr. Haque atftended in many academic training,
workshop and seminars in both home and abroad.

First appointment to the Board 29 September 2019
Born in February 1960

Nationality Bangladeshi

Committee Membership Nil

External Appointment Nil



MD. ABDUS SALAM FCA, FCS

Independent Director

After completion of B. Com (Hons') and M. Com in
Accounting from the University of Dhaka in 1976, Mr. Salam
started Chartered Accountancy Course with the support
of two scholarships: Burmah Eastern and Bangladesh
Chemical Industries Corporation awarded to the CA
profession. Now, he is a Fellow Member of ICAB and ICSB.

Presently, Mr. Salam is a partner of ARTISAN, Chartered
Accountants. Before starting Public Practice, Mr. Salam
was the Technical Adviser of the World Bank Project and
the Asian Development Bank and Director Accounts (In

charge) of Bangladesh Power Development Board (BPDB).

He was elected President of ICAB for year 2013, Mr.
Salom has been in the Council since 2010. He was the
Member of Education Committee for the years 2010-2012
of South Asian Federation of Accountants (SAFA- a body of
the SAARC) and was the Board Member of the SAFA for
the year2013. Mr. Salam was also a Council Member of the
Institute of Chartered Secretaries of Bangladesh (ICSB)
since its inception and served ICSB as the Treasurer for the
year 2004-2005 and as the Vice President for the year
2005-2006. Mr. Salam is a life Member of Bangladesh
Economic Association.

He was an Independent Director of Islami Bank
Bangladesh Ltd. for the years 2010-2015 and IBN Sina
Pharmaceuticals Industry Ltd and also served in these
tfwo organizations as the Chairman/Member of Risk
Management Committee and Audit Committee.

He also served as the Govt. Nominated Director of Codal
Power Generation Company of Bangladesh and the
Electricity Generation Company of Bangladesh, DSE,
CSE and SME foundation.

First appointment to the Board 28 November 2019
Born in January 1954

Nationality Bangladeshi

Committee Membership

Member, Audit Committee

Member, Executive Committee

External Appointment Nil
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DR. HASINA SHEYKH

Independent Director

Dr. Hasina Sheykh did her Masters in Banking from the
Department of Finance and Banking under the University of
Dhaka by securing first class first position. She also
completed MBA in Corporate Strategy & Economic Policy
from Maastricht School of Management (MsM), the
Netherlands and Honored with Distinction. Later she did her
Ph.D. in Employee Relations from UWA Business School
under the University of Western Australia (UWA), Australia.

Dr. Hasina started her carier in the year 2000 with GSP
Finance Company Bangladesh Ltd. Later she joined as a
Lecturer of Banking and Insurance department af
University of Dhaka in the year 2002. Presently she is a
Professor in the same department. Besides, she is also
holding an administrative role as the Director, Masters of
Professional Banking (MPB) Program in University of
Dhaka.

Academically, Dr. Hasina has been awarded many
scholarships such as Endeavour Postgraduate Award,
Australia, The Netherlands Fellowship Programmes (NFP)
by the Netherlands Government, the Best Student
Award in M.Com by Islami Bank Bangladesh Ltd. and
Government Scholarships in all levels of her studies in
school, college and university.

Dr. Hasina has published many research papers on
Corporate Governance, Business Ethics, Corporatfe
Social Responsibility, Women Empowerment and
Work-Family Management of women in the contfext of
Bangladesh.

Dr. Hasina has participated in many conferences at home
& abroad. She is a travel-lover; visited extensively the
counfries of Sweden, Denmark,the Netherlands,
Belgium, Germany, France, Switzerland, Australia, the
UK, Scotland, Indonesia, Malaysia, Thailand, Singapore,
Nepal, Bhutan, India, Saudi Arabia and the UAE.

First appointment to the Board 19 October 2020

Born in January 1976

Nationality Bangladeshi

Committee Membership Member, Executive Committee
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DR. MUHAMMAD SHAHADAT HOSSAIN SIDDIQUEE

Independent Director

Dr. Muhammad Shahadat Hossain Siddiquee, a Professor of
Economics, University of Dhaka, did his Masters in Economics
from the same University. He also completed his MA in
Economics of Development from Erasmus University Rotterdam,
Netherlands. Later he did his Ph.D. in Development Policy from
the University of Manchester, UK.

Dr. Siddiquee started his carrier as an Economist for Research &
Evaluation Division (RED), BRAC before joining the University of
Dhaka. He also worked as Adjunct Faculty with the Insfitute of
Business Administration (IBA), University of Dhaka and Dhaka
School of Economics. He worked as Research Associate at
Erasmus University Rotterdam, Netherlands and Teaching
Assistant af the University of Manchester, UK. Besides, he also
worked as Visiting and Senior Research Fellow at BRAC Institute
of Governance and Development (BIGD), BRAC University.
Moreover, Dr. Siddiquee also worked as the National Economist
for Aisan Development Bank (ADB) and National & Country
Consultant for UNFPA, Bangladesh.

Academically, Dr. Siddiquee has been awarded many
scholarships such as Commonwealth Scholarship, Netherlands
Fellowship Programme, Professor Hans Opschoor Prize for the
best research paper, Gold Medal Award (Academic) by
Salimullah Muslim Hall Ex-Student Welfare Association; University
of Dhaka and Dhaka University Economics Department Alumni
Association (DUEDAA) Scholarship.

Dr. Siddiquee published many research reports, articles, books
and journals. He has also participated in many conference and
seminars at both home and abroad.

First appointment to the Board 19 October 2020

Born in January 1979

Nationality Bangladeshi

Committee Membership Chairman, Audit Committee
External Appointment Nil
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BOARD STRUCTURE AND ITS OPERATION

BOARD STRUCTURE OF UCL

Chaired by Chowdhury Tanzim Karim, the Board of
Directors determines Company's objectives and supervises
their implementation. The operating procedure of the
Board is governed by the internal rules and regulations of
the Board of Directors. The internal rules and regulations
of Board of Directors also define the composition, duties
and operating procedures of the committees established
by the Board, which have their own charter of
functioning. The Board is assisted by two committees as
under:

¢ Board Audit Committee
e Executive Committee

Board Structure

T

Board | . |
Audit Executive @

I Committee T
SIZE OF THE BOARD

Committee

The Board of UCL comprises of eleven members
including four Independent Directors. As per DFIM
Circular no. 9 dated 11 September, 2002 of the
Bangladesh Bank, the size of the Board of a Non-
banking Financial Institution shall be minimum of nine
and maximum eleven excluding Independent Directors.
As per BSEC'’s Notification, a listed company should
have Independent Director of af least one fifth of total
Directors. As per Articles of Association of the Company
the Managing Director is an Ex-officio Director.

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD
The Board of UCL comprises of the following:

Non-executive Directors
Seven (out of whom four are Nominated Directors)

Independent Director
Four

Executive Director
One (The Managing Director)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

There are seven non-executive Directors in the Board.
None of the Directors takes part in the day to day affairs
of the Company. They attend only in the Board/
Committee meetings to discuss the agenda reserved for
the Board/ Committees.

INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR ON THE BOARD

There are four Independent Directors in the Board out of
whom two Independent Directors are nominated by the
Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission. In
order to qualify as an Independent Director, the Board
affrmatively determines that the Director has no
material relationship with UCL either as a partner,
shareholder or officer of an organization that has a
relationship with UCL that would preclude that nominee
from being an Independent Director. For the purpose of
such detfermination, the Directors consider that the
independent Director does not hold any share or holds
less than one percent shares of the total paid up capital
of the Company, who is not connected with the
Company’s Promoters or Directors or Shareholders who
holds one percent or more than one percent shares of
the total paid up shares of the Company, on the basis of
family relationship; who does not have any other
relationship, whether pecuniary or otherwise, with the
company or its subsidiary/associate companies, who is
not a member, Director or Officer of any Stock
Exchange and who is not a shareholder, director or
officer of any stock exchange or an infermediary of the
capital market.

The Independent Director is appointed for a period of
three years which may be extended by one term only. A
person cannot be appointed as Independent Director
who has already been appointed as Independent
Director of five listed Company.

TENURE AND RETIREMENT

As per Companies Act, the office of Non-Executive
Directors is subject to retirement. At least one-third of the
non-executive Directors shall retire by rotation in every
Annual General Meeting. The Managing Director is
appointed for a minimum period for three years subject
to approval of the Central Bank. The office of the
Managing Director being an Ex-officio Director is not
subject to retirement. The tenure of an Independent
Directoris three years and may be extended by another
three years.

The Primary responsibility of the Board of Directors is to
protect the Shareholders' interest. The Board, elected
by the shareholders, is the highest governing authority
within the management structure.

DIRECTORS’ COMPENSATION

Except the Managing Director & CEO, none of the
Directors holds any position of profit and receives any
remuneration other than the fees for attending the
Board/Committee meetings.

The Board in its 270" Meeting held on 29 September
2019 has taken decision that the Board Members will not
take any meeting fee in connection to the attendance
of the Board and its Committee Meetings until further
notice. However, independent Directors will be entitled
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to fee for an amount of BDT 5,000 for attending board
meetings and committee meetings.

MEMBERSHIP OF THE BOARD COMMITTEE

All the Board Committees are comprised entirely of
Non-executive Directors. Membership of Directors in the
Board Committees is given in their biographies on pages
47 to 52 of this Annual Report.

SUB-COMMITTEE

The Board has two sub-Committees namely Board Audit
Committee and Executive Committee. The Board Audit
Committee comprises of five Directors. The Executive
Committee is also consisted of five Directors. All the
Board Committees have a written charter that describes
the Committees’ purpose, duties and responsibilities. The
Committee Charters are available on page 55 to 56 of
this Annual Report.
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BOARD MEETING

The Board holds at least four regularly scheduled
meetings in each year. In the year 2020, the Board met
six times to discuss scheduled business.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Each Director uses his or her best efforts to afttend in all
the meetings of the Board and the Board Committees to
which such Directors is appointed. The Directors are
responsible for developing and upgrading UCL's
Governance Principles, Code of Business Conduct and
the Charter of each Committee on which such Director
serves. For review, working papers relating to business to
be transacted in the meeting are provided well in
advance fo the members of Board/Committees.

COMMUNICATION TO DIRECTOR

Interested parties may communicate with any Director
by sending letter to the attention of the Directors in care
of the Company Secretary of Union Capital Limited, bfi
Landmark, Level - 08, Plot - 16, Gulshan Avenue, Gulshan
-01, Dhaka - 1212.
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CHARTER OF BOARD AND ITS COMMITTEES

The Board of Directors is responsible for supervising the
Management of the business and affairs of the
Company in a way which ensures that the interests of
shareholders and stakeholders are promoted and
protected. In discharging this duty, the Board has the
following overall responsibilities:

Strategic planning process

« Supervising the formulation of the strategic direction,
plans and priorities of the Company and approving
the strategic Plan;

« Reviewing and approving the organizational
structure of the Company;

* Monitoring implementation and effectiveness of the
approved strategic and operating plans;

* Reviewing and approving the corporate financial
objectives and operating plans and actions of the
Company;

« Approving major business decisions;
Identification and management of risks

. Ensuring that processes are in place to identify the
principal risks of Company's business;

e Reviewing the systems that are implemented by
management to manage those risks;

« Reviewing the processes that ensure compliance with
applicable regulatory, corporate, securities and other
legal requirements.

Succession planning and evaluation of management
performance

« Supervising the succession planning processes of the
Company, including the selection, appointment and
development of the Chief Executive Officer and the
senior management team;

« Evaluating and approving compensation of the Chief
Executive Officer and the senior management team
in a manner that is consistent with regulatory
guidelines;

« Overseeing Company’s confrol functions’ having
regard fo theirindependence and effectiveness.
Oversight of communications and public disclosure

o Assessing the  effectiveness of  Company’s
communications, including measures for receiving
feedback from stakeholders;

« Overseeing establishment of processes for accurate,
timely and full public disclosure;

« Reviewing due diligence processes and controls in
connection with certification of the Company's
financial statements.

Internal controls

« Reviewing the effectiveness of Company’s internal
controls and management information systems;

« Reviewing and approving the Company’'s annual
and quarterly financial statements and other public
disclosure documents that require Board approval.

« Overseeing compliance with applicable audit,
accounting and reporting requirements;

« Approving dividends, as well as capital expenditures
and fransactions which exceed threshold amounts
set by the Board.

Culture of Integrity
« Establishing Company's values;

« To the extent feasible, satisfying itself as to the integrity
of the Chief Executive Officer and other senior officers
and that the Chief Executive Officer and other senior
officers create a culture of integrity throughout the
organization.

Governance

« Developing a set of corporate governance principles
and guidelines;

* Appointing from its members a Chairman of the Board;

* Establishing appropriate structures and procedures to
allow the Board to function independently of
management;

e Establishing Board committees and defining their
mandates to assist the Board in carrying out its roles
and responsibilities;

* Setting expectations and responsibilities of directors,
including attendance at, preparation for, and
participation in meetings;

* Review the composition of the Board with a view to
the effectiveness and independence of the Board
and its members.

CHARTER OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee, within the delegated authority
and in fulfiling the regulatory requirements has the
following terms of reference (TOR):

A. Internal Control

¢ Review the implementation of key accounting
policies and financial reporting;

* Evaluate the implementation of the internal control
systems and the risk management process.

B. Internal Audit
¢ Review the adequacy of internal audit function;

e Consider the scope of work and review approve and
the annual audit plan and ensure no unjustified
restrictions or limitations are made;

* Review and approve the annual audit report;

« Review the activities, resources and organizational
structure of Internal Audit;

e Contribute to the selection process for the appointment
of the Head of Internal Audit; and

* Ensure that findings and recommendations communicated
by Internal Audit and Management's proposed responses
are received, discussed and appropriately acted on.
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C. Compliance

Review the effectiveness of the company’s system for
monitoring compliance with relevant laws and regulations
(including internal rules) and the measures taken by
Management as a result of its investigation of material
incidents of non- compliance.

D. Relationship with the external auditor
* Review the scope of work and audit plan;

¢ Review Management Letters issued by external Auditors;

* Review the Report on the annual audit of the Company;

« Consider the independence of the external auditor
and any potential conflicts of interest;

« Review the “Terms of Engagement” of the external auditor;

« Discuss with the external auditor any audit problems
encountered in the course of audit work, including any
restriction on audit scope or access to information;

« Discuss with the external auditor the appropriateness
of the accounting policies applied in the company’s
financial reports;

e Ensure that significant findings and recommendations
communicated by the external auditor and
Management’s proposed responses are received,
discussed and appropriately acted on; and

+ Review the performance of the external auditor and
make recommendations to the Board of Directors for
the appointment, reappointment or termination of
appointment of the external auditor.
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. Reporting to the Board

Report on the conflict of interests;

Suspected or presumed fraud or irregularity or material
defect in the internal control system;

Suspected infringement of laws, rules and regulations;

Any other matters that requires immediate reporting.

. Others

Oversee the financial reporting process;
Monitor choice of accounting policies and principles;

Review the annual financial statements before
submission to the Board for approval;

Review the quarterly and half yearly financial statements;

Review the statement of significant related party
fransactions submitted by the management.

CHARTER OF THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Executive Committee, in fulfilling its purpose, will:

Guide the Management in achieving the organization's
vision/mission;

Review implementation of the business policy;

Approve credit proposals up to BDT 10 million under
each agreement;

Review credit proposals prepared by the Management
and recommend to the Board where the amount
exceeds BDT 10 milion under each agreement;

Review the proposals relating fo write off loan/leases
and recommend to the Board for consideration.






/M Annual Report 2020

DIRECTORS’ REPORTS

Dear Shareholders,

The Board of Directors of Union Capital Limited (UCL)
takes the pleasure to present the Annual Report and the
Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2020 together with the
Auditors’ Report thereon, for consideration and approval
of our respected Shareholders. The Board of Directors of
the Company approved the same in its Meeting held on
30 May 2021.

This Directors' Report has been prepared in compliance
with the Section 184 of the Companies Act 1994, BSEC's
Notification on 03 June 2018, the Listing Regulations of
DSE & CSE, Financial Institutions Act, 1993, Bangladesh
Bank guidelines, Bangladesh Financial Reporting
Standards and other applicable rules and regulations.
Relevant disclosures important and explanations relating
to certain issues have been given by the Directors, which
they consider relevant fo ensure compliance,
fransparency and good governance practices. We
believe that this report will provide the insights of the
Company's performance during the vyear under
reporting.

GLOBAL ECONOMY OVERVIEW

The coronavirus (COVID-19), which has emerged as a
global pandemic, poses a major threat to the global
economy. Protecting lives and allowing health care
systems to cope with have required quarantine,
isolation, lockdown etc. which have severely impacted
economic activity throughout the Globe. It caused a
global recession, the impact of which was surpassed
only by the two World Wars and the Great Depression
over the past century. The pandemic has caused a
severe loss of life, fipping millions intfo extreme poverty,
and is expected to inflict lasting scars that push activity
and income well below their pre-pandemic frend for a
prolonged period. In all, the global economy is
estimated to have contracted 3.5 percent in 2020.
According to IMF, the baseline scenario, which assumes
that social distancing will continue into 2021 but will fade
over time as vaccine coverage will expand everywhere
by the end of 2022.

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
Growth of World GDP (in percentage)

Turning the global economy around in 2021 depends on
how quickly the pandemic can be brought under
control and build consumer and investor confidence.
Following the initial rebound in mid-2020, the global
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economic recovery has slowed. Whereas activity and
frade in the goods sector have improved, the services
sector remains anemic, with internatfional tourism, in
particular, still depressed. The fall in global investment
has been pronounced, particularly for EMDEs excluding
China. The recovery in oil prices was more modest amid
concerns over the pandemic’s lasting impact on oil
demand. Every region is subject to substantial growth
downgrades. East Asia and the Pacific grew by a scant
0.5%. South Asia by 2.7%, Sub-Saharan Africa by 2.8%,
Middle East and North Africa by 4.2%, Europe and
Central Asia by 4.7%, and Latin America by 7.2%.
Although global economic activity is growing again, it is
not likely to return to business as usual for the
foreseeable future.

BANGLADESH ECONOMY OVERVIEW 2020

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
Bangladesh GDP Growth Rate

The year 2020 began with a cloud of uncertainty
hanging over the horizon. The novel coronavirus was
spreading in Europe, the destination of over 60 percent
exports from Bangladesh, after wreaking havoc in
China, its largest trading partner. Bangladesh also felt
the heat of a looming global crisis due to the prevailing
pandemic situations for Covid - 19. As one of the shining
stars in Asia, the country's economy came almost to a
halt as the government imposed countrywide lockdown
to contain the spread of the virus. During the nationwide
lockdown, millions lost jobs, poverty rate doubled and
many businesses folded up. Income of the vast majority
of the population shrank. Exports hit rock bottom as the
importing countries themselves were finding it difficult to
keep their economies afloat.
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To protect the people and the economy, the
Government rolled out a massive Tk. 120,000 crore
stimulus package, one of the largest in the world. It
capped bank interest rates below single digit to help



firms and businesses borrow at a record low rate. The
biggest support came from farmers who continue to
feed the country and the migrant workers who proved
the grim forecasts wrong, sending home a record
amount of remittance. The robust flow of remittance
liffed the country's foreign exchange reserves to record
high and put the country on a firm footing. The
reopening of the economy in June' 2020 was a very
bold move and proved to be a judicious one, as the
virus did not go out of confrol. The agriculfural
production, remittance, the stimulus package and the
uptick in domestic demand and exports put the country
on the path of recovery and the Country reported an
impressive 5.24% GDP growth in FY19-20 despite
prevailing pandemic situation for Covid - 19 and ifs
negative impact both locally and internationally.

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

Remittance (USD BN)

According fo BBS, the growth of agriculture sector has
slowed to 3.11 percentin FY2019-20, from 3.92 percentin
FY2018-19. During the same period, industry sector was
6.48 percent, which was 12.67 percent in the previous
fiscal year. The service sector grew by 5.32 percent in
FY2019-20 compared fo 6.78 percent in the previous
fiscal year. The contribution of agricultural, industry and
service sectors reached at 13.35 percent, 35.36 percent
and 51.30 present respectively in FY2019-20 against
13.65 percent, 35.00 percent and 51.35 percent
respectively in the previous fiscal year. Per capita GDP
and per capita national income stood respectively af
US$ 1,970 and US$ 2,064 in FY2019-20, up by US$ 142 and
US$ 155 from the previous fiscal year. During FY2019-20,
domestic savings increased to 25.31 percent of GDP,
which was 25.02 percent in the previous fiscal year.
Likewise, national savings as percent of GDP increased
to 30.11 percent in FY2019-20 from 29.50 percent of the
previous fiscal year.

The gross investment stood at 31.75 percent of GDP in
FY2019-20, which was 31.57 percent of GDP in the
previous fiscal year. Of this, public investment and
private investment accounted for 8.12 percent and
23.63 percent of GDP, respectively, up from 8.03 percent
and 23.54 percent of GDP in the previous fiscal year. In
FY2019-20, the inflation rate stood at 5.65 percent, which
is slightly higher than the target (5.50%). In this case, food
inflation increased to 5.56 percent and non-food
inflation stood at 5.85 percent.

At the end of FY2019-20, the growth of private sector
credit stood at 8.61 percent, compared to 11.32
percent in the previous fiscal year. The net credit to the
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government increased by 55.51 percent af the end of
June, 2020 compared to 19.37 percent increase in same
period of previous fiscal year. Total export earnings in
FY2019-20 stood at US$ 33,674.09 million, down 16.93
percent from the previous fiscal year. Similarly, imports in
FY2019-20 stood at US$ 54,784.70 million, down 8.56
percent over the previous fiscal year.
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The remittance inflows stood at US$ 18,205.01 million, an
increase of 10.87 percent over the previous fiscal year due
to infroduction of 2 percent incentives on remittances sent
by NRBS. The current account balance decreased as
remittance flow increased. The current account deficit
stood at US$ 4,849 million, compared to US$ 5,102 million in
the previous fiscal year. The overall balance of payments
increased from US$ 179 million in FY2018-19 to US$ 3,655
million in FY2019-20. The surplus in the overall balance
helped maintain the foreign exchange reserve up. On
30 June 2020, the foreign exchange reserves reached
US$ 36.04 billion which was US$ 32.72 billion on 30 June
2019.

BANGLADESH ECONOMY OUTLOOK 2021

Bangladesh is one of the few countries expected to
witness positive GDP growth in FY 2021. To keep the
country's economy afloat in the face of the ongoing
Coronavirus pandemic, the Government has made exira
spending on healthcare, emergency humanitarian
assistance and already announced a stimulus package
of about BDT 1.2 lakh crore for economic recovery.
Some of the notable activities of this package are:
create special funds for export oriented industries;
provide working capital facilities to the affected industry
& service sector organisations; provide working capital
facilities to SMEs; increase the benefits of the Export
Development Fund; increase coverage of social
security; direct cash transfer to the targeted people,
formulate various funds for the agricultural sector.
Besides the financial incentives, various activities
including policy support such as reduction of import
duty on COVID-19 related products, policy support to
increase liquidity in the banking sector has been
provided. As a result of these actions taken by the
government, the economy is expected to turn around.
The government has targeted fo implement more
infrastructure projects. On the other hand, foreign
exchange reserves stood at USD 41 billion at December
2020. Once again, the economy is expected to
experience some major challenges, in terms of loss of
employment, reduced business activities and drastic fall
in private investment like previous year.
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2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
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GDP Growth Forecast Bangladesh (In Percentage)

It is forecasted to pick up to 5.50% in 2021 and 7.90% in
2022, according to the updated IMF forecasts. The
post-pandemic global economic recovery and the
private consumption boosted by strong remittance
flows from the Bangladeshi diaspora around the world
are expected to be the key drivers of growth in 2021.

NBFI SECTOR OVERVIEW 2020 AND OUTLOOK FOR
2021

Non-Bank Financial Institutions (NBFls) have been
playing a crucial role by providing additional financial
services that cannot be usually provided by the banks.
The NBFIs, with more mulfifaceted products and services
have taken their place in the competitive financial
market to safisfy the changing demands of the
customers. It also play an important role in the capital
market as well as in real estate sector of Bangladesh.
Like the banks, most of the NBFIs have separate
subsidiaries to operate merchant banking activities.

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

Classified loan of NBFI (in percentage)

At present, there are 35 NBFIs operating in Bangladesh.
Total asset of NBFls at the end of June 2020 was BDT
860.33 billion, which was BDT 871.50 billion at the end of
2019. NBFls are investing in different sectors of the
economy, but their investments are  mostly
concentrated in industrial sector. As of 30 June 2020,
NBFls total investment in capital market stood at BDT
17.98 billion which is accounted for 2.09 percent of the
total assets of all NBFls. At the end of June 2020, total
deposit of NBFIs stood at BDT 441.17 billion from BDT.
451.00 billion. At the end of June 2020, total liability and
equity stood at BDT 768.71 billion and BDT 91.62 billion
respectively.
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Some policies has been taken by Bangladesh Bank to
mitigate the impacts of COVID-19 on financial
institutions and their clients like keeping classification
status of loan/lease/advance unchanged from January
to December 2020, lowering the Cash Reserve
Requirement (CRR) from 2.5 percent to 1.5 percent on
bi-weekly basis and from 2.0 percent to 1.0 percent on
daily basis, restructuring and revolving loan renewal
facilities on easy terms and conditions. Moreover,
Bangladesh Bank facilitates interest rate subsidy and
refinance scheme for pandemic affected clients of
Financial Institutions and Banks under the government
stimulus  packages for lending working capital in
industries and service sector, and CMSME (Cottage,
Micro, Small, and Medium Enterprises) sector.

2020 CAPITAL MARKET OVERVIEW

The capital market experienced a dramatic period of
ups-and-downs in 2020. Several market developments,
in addition to the wuncertainty regarding the
pandemic-led economic fallout, had pushed down
DSEX index towards 3,604 points on 18 March 2020.
Subsequently, the regulator was forced to impose floor
price on stocks in order to arrest the uncontrollable
decline in the stock price. The regulator then had to
close down the market during the government-
declared general holidays from 26 March 2020 to 30
May 2020, aimed at reducing the transmission of
COVID-19. With uncertainty looming over the future of
the capital market during the pandemic, the
appointment of the new BSEC commission in May'20,
and its inifiatives to bring order into the market, gave
some hope among the investors. In 2020, DSEX gained
949 points (21.3% YoY) to close at 5,402 points, while
DS30 gained 451 points (29.8% YoY) to reach 1,964
points. Average daily turnover increased 35.1% YoY to
BDT 6,489mn in 2020, up from previous BDT 4,803mn in
2019. P/E rafio of DSEX stood at 16.5x in 2020, up from
five-year low P/E ratfio of 11.8xin 2019
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Market Capitalization (In BDT Billions)

Following the appointment, the new BSEC commission
addressed on the backlog of IPOs, and approved
thirteen new IPOs which raised BDT 1,215 crore as
capital. The commission also attempted to keep market
iregularities, infractions, and manipulation in check,
giving the investors’ some hope for improved corporate
and regulatory governance.



Notably, BSEC took a hardline approach against
companies that failed to comply with minimum 2.0%
shareholding of individual directors and cumulative
shareholding of 30.0% by sponsors and directors. Other
initiatives include improving financial condition and
offering exit plan to Z-category companies, holding
company AGM on digital platform, revising category (A, B,
and Z) definition, and issuing directive for the mutual fund
managers to publish financial reports and portfolio
statements. At the end of 2020, the incumbent
commission oversaw a 1,341.6 points gain in DSEX index,
and 41.8% increase in market capitalization.

HIGHLIGHTS ON FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Key operating and financial data of last 5 (five) years is
shown under the heading of Operational Highlights and
Financial Highlights in the page no 37 of this Annual
Report.

OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE OF UCL GROUP

In 2020 the financial sector including Union Capital
Limited passed through horrible challenges. Besides that,
2020 was also a year of stock market disappointment
except few momentum picked up at the yearend. Lack of
frust of depositors to deposit their money in the NBFI sector,
rising NPL rate, poor performance of Stock market and
withdrawal of funds by the Banks from NBFI etc. was the
noteworthy challenges the industry faced during the
year under review. Besides that, the non-banking
financial institutions could not get expected deposits
and credit facilities from bank. The fresh lending almost
halted for liquidity crisis. Due to withdrawal of huge fund
by the depositors and drastic fall in deposit mobilization,
we could not extend finance facility to the prospective
clients. Besides that our two fully owned subsidiaries
operating in the capital market experienced decline in
income due to sluggish capital market except the last
quarter of 2020. Consequently, like the earlier year, UCL
experienced financial loss for consecutive two years. By
taking some special measures like reduction of
controllable operating expenses, collection from Bad
and Non-performing loan accounts, the Management
of the Company shrink the losses around in half way in
comparison fo previous year. In coming years, we will
putting all possible efforts fo come out of this adverse
situation.

FINANCING AND INVESTMENT OPERATION

Union Capital always tries to be innovative while making
any investment decision with a focus to identify and
select emerging sectors for financing and maintaining
quality portfolio. As a reflection of its corporate vision,
the company always prefers the segmented business
proposition  which includes corporate, institutional
clients, SMEs and retail finance. Overall investment was
slow due to liquidity crisis and unrestful money market
throughout the year.
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Diversified porifolio

Major financing activities of the company include Term
Finance, lease finance, Retail finance, SME finance,
housing finance, syndicate finance, work order finance
etc.

CAPITAL MARKET OPERATION

UCL offers services in the area of merchant banking,
portfolio management and stock brokerage through its
subsidiaries namely UniCap Investments Limited and
UniCap Securities Limited.

IPO Management

UCL Group performs public issue management along
with financial engineering and designing of capital
structuring services for customers who desires to raise
fund from capital market for BMRE and repayment of
debt. During the year 2020, the UniCap Investments
Limited didn’f s